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Public Availability of the Annual Report 
 
A copy of the annual report is available from: 
 
Secretary to the Board of Trustees 
The Rockhampton Grammar School 
Archer Street 
Rockhampton Qld 4700  
 
Telephone 07 4936 0602, Facsimile 07 4922 1552 
 
Email: kjohnson@rgs.qld.edu.au 
 
Hard copies of the report can be downloaded from the School’s website at:  
www.rgs.qld.edu.au/annual-reports  
 
ISSN 1838-9724 
 
 
Interpreter Services 
 
The Rockhampton Grammar School is committed to providing accessible services to Queenslanders 
from all culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds. If you have difficulty in understanding this 
report and require an interpreter to effectively communicate the report to you please contact: 
 
Secretary to the Board of Trustees  
The Rockhampton Grammar School 
Archer Street 
Rockhampton Qld 4700  
Telephone 07 4936 0602 or email: kjohnson@rgs.qld.edu.au 
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Chairperson’s Report 2017 
 
As we draw to the close of 2017, Rockhampton Grammar can report another very successful chapter in 
its long and proud history.   
 
A review of our strategic plan has seen the following projects significantly progress throughout the 
year:- 
 
Senior Assessment and Tertiary Entrance (SATE) 

Whilst the State Government has delayed the implementation of the SATE for one year, the School has 
continued in its significant development of the curriculum to be fully compliant by 2019 and well 
prepared for the introduction. 
 
The School’s curriculum and pedagogy cadre have continued their excellent work and additionally the 
School has engaged a critical friend for overseeing the process. 
 
Engagement with Asia 

Following on extensive surveying of the School community’s appetite for this strategy prior to 
implementation, significant progress has been achieved this year including visits by the School to 
China, entering into Memorandum of Understandings with Chinese schools, development of 
international materials including a prospectus in Chinese and continued interaction with our lead 
advisor, Grok Global. 
 
For 2019 and beyond our School will look to further develop sister school relationships, establish a 
social media presence and seek the intake of students in a limited way at approximately four students 
per year level from Years 7 to 12.  
 
Review of Timetabling and Subject Offerings 

Coupled with the SATE introduction, the School reviewed timetables and subject offerings for 
secondary and certain changes out of the review are being implemented throughout the School. 
 
Enrolment Review 

This strategy objective was delayed due to disruption with the third party provider the School engaged 
for the review and is still awaiting finalisation at the time of this report. 
 
Preliminary recommendations have come out of the School’s own review of enrolment procedures and 
these are being considered for implementation in 2018 and onwards.  
 
Workplace Health and Safety Practices 

This review was completed in semester 2 with a recommendation to have a staff induction handbook 
drafted for Board and Senior Management consideration. 
 
The School takes its compliance obligations very seriously and will look to implement all review 
recommendations once received. 
 
Purchasing and Procurement Processes 

Through the Board’s Secretary, the School has fully reviewed its purchasing and procurement 
processes in conjunction with the State Purchasing Policy to produce a School based purchasing policy 
with a view to full implementation from 2018 onwards. 
 
In relation to the other performance areas of the School:- 
• Academic 

Grammar has again shows that it leads Central Queensland education with results being above 
State and National averages.   
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• People 
Congratulations to all of our students, staff and parents for another outstanding effort 
throughout the year.  The culture at any School is a significant factor in outcomes delivered 
and Grammar can be proud of its culture and our people based outcomes. 
 

• Finance 
An operating surplus was again be achieved this year and the School remains in a very sound 
financial position.  The Central Queensland economy is showing signs – albeit early – of 
improvement which will assist the School going forward with enrolments and the ability to 
attract good staff to achieve our results. 
 

• Infrastructure 
There has been no significant infrastructure added to the School throughout the year as it has 
been one of consolidation in this area. 
 

• Boarding 
This continues to be the strength of our engagement with Central Queensland rural 
communities (in particular) and it is continually pleasing to see Grammar move from strength 
to strength with boarding – notwithstanding Australia wide boarding has declined. 
 
The School is continually monitoring its current programs and looking to develop new 
programs to enhance the boarding experience. 
 

• Thanks 
In particular, I wish to thank Headmaster, Dr Phillip Moulds, our Senior Executive and all 
members of staff for their dedication to our students and parents.  I thank my fellow Trustees 
for their critical input throughout the year, sound governance decisions and wise counsel.   
 
As a result of the four year election process, it is pleasing to report that Trustees Mark 
Birkbeck, Josie Volck and myself will sit as elected representatives on the new Board which has 
its term commencing March 2018. 

 
Looking forward to 2018 

The School, via the Board and Senior Management, is in the process of restructuring the School survey 
to be conducted in the second/third term next year.  The feedback obtained on current operations will 
form the basis for future decisions.  I urge all parents, staff members and students to complete the 
survey in 2018 which will be done on an independent and anonymous basis.  Modern organisations 
must look to regularly seek their stakeholders’ feedback for future actions. 
 
Rockhampton Grammar looks forward to continued success throughout 2018. 
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The Rockhampton Grammar School At A Glance 
 
The Rockhampton Grammar School was founded in 1881 and is one of the eight schools in 
Queensland governed by the Grammar Schools Act 2016. 
 
The Rockhampton Grammar School is an independent non-denominational co-educational day and 
boarding school, educating and caring for students from Prep to Year 12, as well as the Early Learning 
Years.  Boarding students are enrolled from Years 7 to 12.  Enrolments are mostly drawn from 
Rockhampton and the Central Queensland region, but also further afield.  The School is the largest 
independent boarding school in Queensland and the second largest co-educational boarding school in 
Australia.  It is a leading school in regional Queensland and one of the foremost schools in regional 
Australia.  
 
The School’s principal place of business is in Archer Street, Rockhampton, where Primary and 
Secondary campuses and boarding accommodation are located.  The School also operates an Outdoor 
Education Facility, “Ritamada”, at Emu Park on the Capricorn Coast.  It has a small farm at Port Curtis 
on the southern outskirts of Rockhampton, and Belmont Station on the northern outskirts of 
Rockhampton for cattle work.  
 
At the date of the 2017 State census in February 2017 the total enrolment was 1,343 students, of whom 
338 were boarders. Primary school enrolment was 429 from the Preparatory year to Year 6, and 
secondary enrolment, Year 7 to Year 12, at census date was 914.  
 
Primary education was reintroduced to RGS in 1990, Prep was introduced in 2005 and The 
Rockhampton Grammar School Early Learning Centre opened in 2007.  The School offers an 
affordable education, quality teaching and boarding facilities, and a nurturing environment. 
 
The Rockhampton Grammar School is a proud member of Round Square, a worldwide association of 
schools promoting six ideals of learning: internationalism, democracy, environment, adventure, 
leadership and service.  RGS teachers and students have numerous opportunities each year to 
participate in international community service projects and leadership programmes through Round 
Square and RGS activities. 
 
The School operates a 138-place Early Learning Centre in Reservoir Street in close proximity to the 
main campus.  
 
There is also a rowing facility, comprising club rooms and a training gymnasium, on the Fitzroy River 
adjacent to the rowing course.  A further sports facility was acquired during 2016, predominantly for 
the sport of rugby. 
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School Mission Statement 
 
Our Ambition 
 
The Rockhampton Grammar School aspires to be a centre of excellence in education.  The School is 
committed to: 
 

• providing opportunities for students to achieve success 
• providing outstanding teaching and learning opportunities for students and staff 
• strengthening its partnerships locally, nationally and internationally 
• providing an environment where all feel safe and secure and can thrive 
• developing students’ moral and ethical character and the values of the School 
• challenging students to find meaning and value in their lives 

 
 
Our Purpose 
 
The School provides a disciplined, challenging and stimulating learning environment to inspire our 
students to become successful lifelong learners, responsible local and global citizens, and men and 
women of strong ethical and moral character.  We promote high standards of scholarship and 
character development.  All members of the School community to pursue personal excellence in their 
intellectual, physical, creative and emotional development. 
 
 
Our Values 
 

•  Care and Compassion – care for self and others 
•  Endeavour – seek to perform at your best in everything you undertake individually and 

collectively 
•  Respect – treat others with consideration and regard 
•  Honesty and Trustworthiness – be honest, sincere and able to be trusted 
•  Responsibility – be accountable for and in charge of your own actions 
•  Integrity – act in accordance with principles of moral and ethical conduct, and ensure 

consistency between words and actions 
•  Democracy – appreciate the rights and privileges of citizenship, commitment to the pursuit of 

the common good, and standing up and helping others 
•  Community – be aware, inclusive and tolerant of others, accept diversity, provide service 

 
 
Our Commitment 
 
Every Opportunity, Every Student, Every Day 
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Governance 
 
Legislative Basis 
 
The Board of Trustees of the Rockhampton Grammar School operates under the Grammar Schools Act 
2016 and the Grammar Schools Regulation 2016, and is a Statutory Body within the meaning given in the 
Financial Accountability Act 2009.  The School is subject to annual audit by the Queensland Audit Office. 
 
The Grammar Schools Act 2016 came into effect on 1 January 2017 and replaced the Grammar Schools Act 
1975 with modern legislation that aims to meet the contemporary needs of the school. The Grammar 
Schools Act 2016 provides for the establishment and regulation of the school including the constitution 
of the board of trustees and the functions of the board. The Grammar Schools Act 2016 did not alter the 
status or functions of the Board of Trustees or the Board’s responsibility for the governance of the 
school.   
 
Minister Responsible for Administration of Legislation 
 
The Minister for Education and Minister for Industrial Relations is responsible for the administration 
of the Grammar Schools Act 2016 (the Act). 
 
 
Functions and Powers of the Board 
 
The Board of Trustees of The Rockhampton Grammar School is a statutory body under: 

(a) the Financial Accountability Act 2009; and 
(b) the Statutory Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982. 

 
The Statutory Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982, part 2B explains how that Act affects a Board’s powers. 
 
The functions of the Board of Trustees are specified in Section 11 of the Grammar Schools Act 2016 as 
follows: 

(a) to supervise, maintain and control the operations of the board’s school;  
(b) to erect, alter, add to, purchase or sell buildings used or to be used for the board’s school; 
(c) to effect general improvements to the premises used or to be used for the board’s school; 
(d) to provide an educational program for the board’s school; 
(e) to make policies and procedures about – 

(i) fees and charges to be paid in relation to students enrolled or to be enrolled at 
the board’s school; and 

(ii) the discipline and conduct of students enrolled at the board’s school; and 
(iii) the management and control of the School; and 
(iv) the matters mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (d).  

(f) any other function given to the board under this Act or another Act. 
 
The general powers of the Board of Trustees are set out in the Act and include the power to: 

(a) enter into financial arrangements (Section 12); and 
(b) make by-laws about elections under this Act, and about the conduct of its business 

(Section 13); and 
(c) establish trust funds (Section 25); and 
(d) establish investment common funds (Section 26); and 
(e) employ staff (Section 28). 
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Governing Body 
 
Board of Trustees 
 
The Board of Trustees of The Rockhampton Grammar School was constituted on 4 October 1878.  The 
Board consists of at least seven but no more than nine members appointed by the Governor in Council 
for four years of whom: 
 
 (a) four are persons nominated by the Minister 
 (b) three are persons who have donated or subscribed at least the electoral eligibility 

amount to the School as prescribed by the Act 
 (c) up to two additional members are chosen by the Board and nominated by the Minister. 
 
The Governor in Council appointed the current Board for a term of four years from 2 March 2014 to 
19 March 2018 (Dr V. Di Milia joined the Board on 19 October 2017). 
 
 
Ministerial Nominees 
 
Emeritus Professor D.J. Clayton, MAppSci, BAppSci, GradDipSciEd   

Dr J. South, PhD, BSc(Hons) 

Mrs K.M. Wilson, BA (UQ), DipEd (UQ) 

Dr V. Di Milia, PhD, MEdSt, BA (Hons), DipTeach  

 
Elected Members 
 
Mr B.V.R. Beasley, (Chairperson) LLB(Hons), JP 

Mr M.J. Birkbeck, (Deputy Chairperson) BBus(Acct), FCPA, JP 

Mrs J.M. Volck, BAg Econ (UQ) 

 
 

Board of Trustees of The Rockhampton Grammar School 

Act or instrument Grammar Schools Act 2016 

Functions The Board’s functions are to supervise, maintain and control the operations of 
the board’s school; to provide an education program; to make policies and 
procedures; to provide premises to be used for the school. 

Achievements RGS students in 2017 achieved impressive academic results, in both OP scores 
and VET qualifications.  Students also found significant success in the co-
curricular domain in 2017.  The School strengthened its engagement in global 
education,  

Financial 
reporting 

As a Statutory Authority of the Queensland Government the School’s financial 
accounts are subject to audit by the Queensland Audit Office.  The School’s 
financial year is from 1 January to 31 December. 

Remuneration  

Position Name Meetings/sessions 
attendance 

Approved 
annual, 
sessional or 
daily fee  

Approved 
sub-
committee 
fees if 
applicable 

Actual fees 
received  

Chair Brad Beasley 10 Nil Nil Nil 

Deputy Chair Mark 
Birkbeck 

8 Nil Nil Nil 



9 
 

Trustee Debbie 
Clayton 

8 Nil Nil Nil 

Trustee Lee Di Milia 1 (eligible to 
attend 2 
meetings) 

Nil Nil Nil 

Trustee Jill South 10 Nil Nil Nil 

Trustee Josie Volck 10 Nil Nil Nil 

Trustee Kaye Wilson 8 Nil Nil Nil 

No. scheduled 
meetings/sessions 

The Board met formally on 10 occasions during 2017. 
 

Total out of 
pocket expenses 

Out of pocket expenses incurred during 2017 was $7,312.78. 

 
 
Members of the Board perform their duties on a part-time basis for no remuneration. 
 
 
Committees of the Board 
 
The Board of Trustees of the Rockhampton Grammar School was supported by two sub committees 
throughout 2017. 
 
The Capital Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the Board and is chaired by Dr Jill South.  Mr 
Mark Birkbeck and Mrs Kay Wilson are the other members of the committee, however all Trustees are 
welcome to attend committee meetings.  The committee is responsible to the Board for the capital 
development and maintenance of the school’s built environment. The committee meets most months 
two weeks prior to meetings of the Board. 
 
In 2017 the Committee oversaw major projects from planning through to completion.  These projects 
include: 

• Year 7 Courtyard –aesthetic and functional improvement of the space adjacent to the Palmer, 
Woolcock and Birkbeck buildings. 

• Stage 1 Paving Replacements adjacent to School House. 
• Early planning for upgrade to Automatic Fire Detection systems. 

 
The Finance and Risk Committee is a sub-committee of the Board and is chaired by Mr Mark Birkbeck.  
Dr Jill South and Mrs Josie Volck are the other members of the committee, however all Trustees are 
welcome to attend committee meetings.  The committee is responsible to the Board for oversight of the 
School’s financial results and external audit, and risk management. The committee meets most months 
of the year or as required to monitor financial progress and to examine the final statements of account 
before they are signed off for external audit, and to consider the risk domain.  
 
Trustee members of these committees do not receive any remuneration.   
 
An Internal Audit Committee has not been established owing to the size and nature of the School, and 
the oversight of the finance function provided by the Finance and Risk Committee. 
 
 
Risk Management 
 
The Board of Trustees considers that the risks identified and the actions required to manage and 
mitigate these risks should be a matter for the whole Board and therefore Risk Management is a 
permanent item on Board agendas.  
 
The Risk Management Strategy document allows the School to continue to develop a robust risk 
management framework and clearly demonstrate that it has proactive management practices in place to 
ensure that risks are identified, managed, monitored and reviewed. 
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The School continues to review and update the policies that underpin the risk management strategy. 
These efforts focus on student and staff welfare, financial health, governance issues, regulatory and 
legal issues, information technology systems and stakeholder interests.  
 
 
Associated Bodies 
 
The Board does not operate any controlled, associated or trustee bodies. 
 
 
External Scrutiny 
 
As a Statutory Authority of the Queensland Government the School’s financial accounts are 
subject to audit by the Queensland Audit Office. The School’s financial year is a calendar 
year and there are no material issues outstanding from the 2016 audit.  
 
On 22 June 2017, the QAO report titled ‘Universities and grammar schools: 2016 results of financial 
audits (Report 18: 2016-17)’ was tabled in the Queensland legislative assembly.  
 
This report summarises the results of QAO financial audits of: 

• the seven Queensland public universities and their controlled entities,  
• the eight Queensland grammar schools, and  
• a small number of other education-specific entities with a financial year end of 31 December.  

 
The report provides an overview of finances at 31 December 2016 and of the financial accounting issues 
that arose during the audits. 
 
In 2017 an independent external risk management audit was conducted with respect to the School’s 
outdoor education programme.  The purpose of this audit was to provide external risk management 
assistance related to the School’s outdoor education programme, and was specifically designed to 
provide objective feedback on the documentation used in the design, planning, delivery and review of 
outdoor education programmes.  The reviewer noted that a “solid, professional and competent culture 
exists”, and made recommendations to assist with further improvement of the programme.  A summary 
of the recommendations include: 

• a review of documentation and communications with parents and students, 
• a review of administrative systems, including risk assessment, incident reporting, and 

programme documentation, 
• a review of the critical incident plan and specifically how this relates to the outdoor education 

programme, 
• schedule testing of the critical incident plan. 

 
The School has commenced addressing each of the recommendations proposed by the reviewer with 
the process to continue throughout 2018.  Planning is currently well under way for scenario testing of 
the critical incident plan. 
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Review of Critical Projects 

 
Critical Projects for 2017 
 
In 2016 the Board and the School Executive set out the following as Critical Projects for 2017: 
 

1. Proactively respond through course and student preparation to Queensland’s new Senior 
Assessment and Tertiary Entrance system due for implementation in 2019 and regularly update 
the School community.  

 
2. Deliberately pursue strategies to enhance the School’s engagement with Asia in general, with a 

specific focus on engagement with China. 
 

3. Conduct a review of the secondary school timetable and subject offerings in the Senior School, 
particularly in respect to VET offerings and psychology. 

 
4. Conduct a review of the School’s enrolment documents, marketing, practices, processes and 

procedures and develop an enrolment management plan. 
 

5. Conduct a review of the School’s work health and safety practices, processes and procedures. 
 

6. Conduct a review of the School’s purchasing and procurement processes and review the 
operation of School support functions. 

 
 
Review of Critical Project Outcomes 
 

 
1.  Proactively respond through course and student preparation to Queensland’s new Senior 

Assessment and Tertiary Entrance system due for implementation in 2019 and regularly update the 
School community.  

 
Following publication in late 2014 of the Australian Council for Educational Research (ACER) 
Report which reviewed Queensland’s OP system, the then Queensland Minister for Education, the 
Honourable Kate Jones MP, announced on 25 August 2015 that a new Senior Assessment and 
Tertiary Entrance system would be introduced in Queensland. Her announcement indicated the 
inclusion of external assessment and the issuing of an Australian Tertiary Admissions Rank (ATAR), 
bringing Queensland in line with other states and territories. This was a historic event for 
Queensland given the significant proposed change to assessment. As such, the School has actively 
sought to keep abreast of changes and ensure all stakeholders are regularly updated on key 
decisions and announcements in relation to the new system. 
 
The subsequent announcement by the Palaszczuk government in October 2016 that the new Senior 
Assessment and Tertiary Entrance system would be delayed one year, to commence with Year 11, 
2019, did not mean the School slowed its planning for this significant development in education. 
 
The School’s Curriculum and Pedagogy Cadre met regularly during the year to discuss, review and 
analyse relevant information in order to prepare and update RGS students, staff, parents and all 
relevant stakeholders. The Cadre’s purpose is to provide advice to the Headmaster on the School’s 
academic planning, activities, policies and procedures related to changes in senior assessment as 
proposed by the Queensland State Government. 
 
The Cadre determined and established a number of key tasks to focus on during 2017. Each task 
had a leader from the Cadre who was ultimately responsible for the development and progress of 
the task throughout the year. Based on their expertise and role at the School, other Cadre staff were 
also assigned to each task. The task groups met regularly under the direction of the task leader, with 
regular updates given at Cadre meetings.  
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As the new Senior Assessment and Tertiary Entrance system is such a major development for 
education, staff were provided with every opportunity to attend professional development sessions 
available. 
 
On 31 July, all secondary teaching staff attended the twilight district professional development two-
hour workshop held at Emmaus College. This workshop was conducted by QCAA with Chris Rider 
(CEO), Jacqueline Wilton (Director, Curriculum Services Division), and Claude Jones (Director, 
Assessment and Reporting Division) addressing teachers from the district. The Rockhampton 
Grammar School was fortunate to secure an individual school session with two of the three key 
QCAA representatives the following day. This session was attended by all Cadre representatives for 
two hours and allowed attendees the opportunity to ask questions relating to the new system 
specifically in relation to the School. Additionally, the School outlined its plans in preparing for the 
new system. Both QCAA representatives were thoroughly impressed by the extensive work 
undertaken by RGS and in fact indicated, in their opinion, the School had the most comprehensive 
approach of any Queensland school they visited. Given the representatives have been to over one 
hundred schools during their travels this year, it was an outstanding reassurance for the entire 
school. 
 
QCAA syllabus orientation workshops for each Year 11 2018 subject commenced in July 2017. RGS 
staff attended full day sessions for Accounting, Chemistry, English, General Mathematics, Health, 
Mathematical Methods, and Philosophy and Reason.  
 
To aid subject selection in Year 11, 2019, a number of changes were implemented for Year 10, 2018. 
Firstly, elective courses were renamed ‘Introduction to Senior Business’, ‘Introduction to Health 
and Physical Education’, for instance. Secondly, Graphics and Technology Studies will no longer be 
offered as standalone subjects in 2018 given they become one subject, Design, under the new 
system. Thirdly, a new subject ‘Introduction to Psychology, and Philosophy and Reason’ will be 
implemented in Year 10, 2018. This will allow students to be exposed to the content and 
understandings required by these two new subjects to Queensland education offerings. 
 
To ensure the parent body are updated as regularly as possible, items of use and interest are 
presented in the School newsletter and quarterly magazine.  A Parent Briefing was held in August 
with the Headmaster, Dr Phillip Moulds, Director of Teaching and Learning, Reniece Carter, and 
Dean of Studies, Catherine Cuddihy, presenting an update on the new Senior Assessment and 
Tertiary Entrance system as well as highlighting specific projects happening at the School. 
 
The School’s critical friend, David Loader, visited on 7 and 8 February, and 18 and 19 May. For the 
February visit, he met with the Cadre as a group as well as hosting one on one sessions with Reniece 
Carter, Director of Teaching and Learning, Catherine Cuddihy, Dean of Studies, Julien Wright, 
Dean of Administration and Staffing, and Phillip Moulds, Headmaster. During the May visit, David 
met with Reniece Carter and Catherine Cuddihy prior to spending time in each of the four core 
departments (Mathematics, English, Social Science and Science). David also engaged in a discussion 
with a number of Year 9 students (both male and female, day and boarding) and hosted a separate 
meeting with a selected group of Year 9 parents. A third visit for the year occured on Friday, 8 
September which involved a debrief on the Melbourne study tours and timeline planning for 2018.  
 
In order to remain abreast of developments and to steer and provide advice to QCAA, the School 
has encouraged staff participation, as far as practical, in all projects relating to the new system. As 
part of this, the School participated in the Year 11 external trial for Mathematics B and English 
during Semester 1. The English trial was held on 30 May with 157 RGS students participating and on 
1 June, the Mathematics B trial involving 85 students was undertaken. Following receipt of the 
QCAA-published report in mid-July outlining state and RGS results, a comprehensive review of the 
data was conducted. 
 
The School’s results were discussed at length during a Cadre meeting held in July. In order to 
ensure the School’s participation was fully utilised, feedback was sought from all English and 
Mathematics teachers and this was subsequently provided to QCAA. Participation in these two 
subject areas has allowed reflection on teaching pedagogy to occur as well as opening discussion on 



13 
 

how to best prepare students for external assessment which is a very new addition to Queensland’s 
education system.  
 
Sandra Salmond was a Year 11 Mathematics B external trial marker, a task she also completed in 
2016. Her involvement allowed the Mathematics Department to hear what QCAA were focusing on 
during the marking operation and also provided an insight into student ability outside RGS. 
 
The School’s Director of Teaching and Learning, Reniece Carter, applied to remain as a member of 
the ISQ Education Advisory Committee having served on this committee since mid-2016. She was re-
appointed to the July 2017-June 2018 committee. Key Independent Schools Queensland (ISQ) 
personnel (David Robertson, Executive Director; Mark Newham, Director of Educational 
Performance and Improvement; Josephine Wise, Assistant Director, Educational Services) as well as 
many Principals, Deputy Principals and Directors of Teaching and Learning serve on this 
committee. As such, involvement allows invaluable advice to be obtained as well as further 
enhancing network links. 
 
QCAA held a two-day Principals and School Leaders conference relating to the new system at the 
Brisbane Convention and Exhibition Centre on 17 and 18 October. Phillip Moulds and Reniece 
Carter attended this event.  
 
Given the current Overall Position (OP) system has been in operation since 1992 and involves 
school-administered internal assessment instruments only, the significant changes under the new 
Senior Assessment and Tertiary Entrance system mean the School will continue to closely monitor 
QCAA developments and information releases into 2018. The School’s Leadership Team and 
specifically the Cadre are devoted to ensuring RGS students and staff are prepared for the system as 
effectively as possible. 
 

 
2. Deliberately pursue strategies to enhance the School’s engagement with Asia in general, with a 

specific focus on engagement with China.   
 

At RGS Asia Engagement has progressed significantly over the past 18 months.  This progress 
includes: 
• Establishment of a partnership with Grok Global. 
• Completion of a research study with Grok Global looking at community readiness and 

planning for the implementation of an Asia Engagement strategy at RGS. 
• Two visits by the Headmaster to China. 
• Development of formal Sister School relationships with YK Pao and Ningbo Huamao (NBHIS) 

International Schools in China and with Tamagawa Academy in Japan.  The development of 
these relationships has involved reciprocal visits between these schools and RGS.  It also 
involved RGS visiting a number of other schools in China to work out what the best fit was for 
the School. 

• Significant research into student recruitment in China. 
• The drafting of an RGS Agent Agreement and the sharing of this agreement with three 

selected agents in China.   
• The establishment of an online and social media presence in China with the School now 

having WeChat and Youku accounts and a Chinese Webpage. 
• The development of marketing materials in Chinese taking into account a Chinese point of 

view, rather than just a straight translation of the English version (inclusive of colours, imagery 
and linguistic nuances). This material includes a Chinese Prospectus, Infographic and Business 
Cards. A Japanese Prospectus has also been produced. 

• The enrolment of the School’s first international student for many years, in Term 2 2017 in 
Year 8.  A second international student commenced at RGS in Semester 2 2017.  This process 
has involved the development of the capacity of the School to enable this to occur which has 
been a substantial undertaking. 

• Trade Mission to Japan. 
• Establishment of links with Austrade and Trade Investment Queensland. 
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• The identification of an Export Market Development Grant to subsidise the cost of the School’s 
Asia Engagement strategy.  

• Mandarin as a language being offered through the LEC in 2017 outside of the curriculum.  
• The development of a process for the support for international students at RGS including ESL, 

connection with the Chinese community and homestay options during holiday times.  
• The School’s Jazz Ensemble and Choir preparing submissions to engage in the MISA Music 

Festival in 2018. 
• The offering of an Antipodean’s trip to China as a part of the Year 10 Outdoor Education 

programme in 2018. 
• The hosting of students from Japan on a term long stay in 2018, in addition to shorter study 

tours.  
 
 
3.  Conduct a review of the secondary school timetable and subject offerings in the Senior School, 

particularly in respect to VET offerings and psychology. 
 

When reviewing the secondary school timetable and subject offerings consideration was given to 
what year that cohort would complete their secondary education. 
 
If a student will complete their schooling before 2019 (2017 Year 10’s) there have been no changes 
to current subject offerings in Year 11 and 12. This is because they will be the final year to complete 
the QCS and obtain an OP score. Similarly there has been no change in the VET Certificate 
offerings. 
 
Several meetings occurred throughout the year to discuss what changes need to be made to best 
prepare RGS staff and students for the new system being introduced in Queensland in 2019. 
 
An initial meeting between the Headmaster, Denise Wright, Reniece Carter and Julien Wright 
occurred in Semester 1. During this meeting the panel identified what Year 11 and 12 subjects RGS 
would consider offering in 2019. Whilst most subjects matched what RGS was offering, the most 
notable decision was the introduction of the subjects Psychology and Philosophy & Reasoning which 
are currently among the most popular offerings in NSW and Victoria.  From Year 10 2018, Year 10s 
will select from subjects that will be an Introduction to the particular subject for Years 11 and 12.  
The decision with regard to VET offerings was delayed until QCAA finalises its decision on how VET 
will work under the new system. Another consideration with regard to future VET offerings is the 
proposed changes that may occur with regard to VET funding for schools.  In the interim the 
School will be continuing to work with a number of partner RTOs to offer suitable certification for 
those students who are not in the OP pathway (2018, 2019) and will continue to review the VET and 
other career pathways for non-ATAR students (2020 onwards). 
 
With a decision regarding what Year 11 and 12 subjects will be offered in 2019, decisions were made 
regarding what changes needed to take place to the subject offerings in Year 10. Therefore, the 
following changes were made to the Year 10 subject offerings (commencing 2018) 
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Discussions were also held regarding subject offerings for Year 8 and 9 in 2019. 
 
 

4.  Conduct a review of the School’s enrolment documents, marketing, practices, processes and 
procedures and develop an enrolment management plan.  

 
The Rockhampton Grammar School engaged a consultant firm in January 2017, to conduct a 
thorough review of enrolment practices and to consult on enrolment strategies.  Unfortunately RGS 
was not satisfied with the progress of this review, and the full agreement for service was not fulfilled.  
Retaining all good information that became available during the review, RGS was able to act on 
some recommendations: 
 A new RGS Admissions Group was formed, focusing on the School’s enrolment process and 

related framework. 
 The development of new and better enrolment metrics and improved data management. 
 Efforts to enhance internal communications. 
 Admissions and enrolments to feature as a regular agenda item on the Leadership Team’s 

weekly meetings. 
 

A Global Education Strategist was engaged during 2017 to work directly with the Registrar and the 
Director of Communications and Development to respond to key findings of the review report and 
to consider the School’s current practices, culture and readiness to for enhanced domestic and 
international engagement, specifically working with RGS on: 
 Metrics 
 Social media (as it pertains to enrolment) 
 Resources 
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5. Conduct a review of the School’s work health and safety practices, processes and procedures.  
 

The Board Secretary conducted a review of the School’s work health and safety practices, processes 
and procedures, focusing on compliance with legislation, relevance of processes and procedures 
with School operations, and the actual application of processes and procedures.  Recommendations 
were formed, to be implemented during Semester 1 2018. 
 
 

6. Conduct a review of the School’s purchasing and procurement processes and review the operation 
of School support functions.  
 
This review involved consideration of current processes and policies, and alignment with the 
Queensland Procurement Policy.  It highlighted areas where processes could be updated resulting 
in improved purchasing control to achieve the best possible value for money.  A programme of 
educating staff in the updated processes commenced during 2017. 
 
 
 

Critical Projects for 2018 
 
The School has identified the following projects as the critical projects for 2018: 
 

• Proactively respond through course and student preparation to Queensland’s new Senior 
Assessment and Tertiary Entrance system due for implementation in 2019 and regularly update 
the School community. 

• Deliberately pursue strategies to enhance the School’s engagement with Asia in general, with a 
specific focus on engagement with Japan and China. 

• Conduct a review of the School’s Boarding practices, processes and procedures and establish a 
Boarding Development Plan. 

• Launch and begin to implement The Rockhampton Grammar School’s approach to Positive 
Education. 

• Deliberately pursue the development and use of the capabilities provided to the School 
through the TASS Administration System. 

• Formulate and engage in actions that places The Rockhampton Grammar School as the 
educational leader that is responding to issues of standards and performances of the education 
sector in the Central Queensland region, Queensland and nationally. 
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Headmaster’s Report 2017 
 
The Rockhampton Grammar School is a dynamic place. It is energetic, changeable, multifaceted and vibrant.  
RGS reflects all that is valuable in the human spirit captured in the hearts, minds and actions of the students 
who attends here.  When you walk around The Rockhampton Grammar School, interact with, observe and 
become a part of Grammar Life, you find such diversity, richness and opportunity. You find a School that is 
ensuring that its students are world ready and is deliberately developing not only academic and personal 
character, but leadership in its students and staff.  You find a deep school, which is not a place where students 
come merely to gain a qualification or a score, not a place where staff come to collect a pay slip, but rather it is 
a place that becomes a part of each student’s and teacher’s identity, part of their heart, soul and mind.  It is 
this depth, opportunity and richness that has made 2017 an important year in the history of our School.  I am 
delighted to report to the community on a year of achievement in all arenas, of significant preparation for the 
School’s future, of partnerships, of leadership, and of continuing research and development in educational 
programmes. 
 
The benchmarked academic results from the past twelve months reflect the excellent efforts of our students 
and their teachers, and the leadership of your School, not only in Central Queensland but also in the State.  
There were some very rewarding outcomes in our 2017 NAPLAN results and our OP results compared very 
favourably with past performances.  The results achieved by the 2016 senior group, the fact that 100% of 
students achieved their Queensland Certificate of Education, and the ranking for a sixth consecutive year of 
The Rockhampton Grammar School by The Australian as among the best 50 schools in Regional Australia and 
the best 50 schools in Queensland, are simple and powerful representations of our students’ efforts and the 
School’s investment in their academic development and growth.  Further measure of the quality of the 
outcomes is demonstrated by RGS students gaining University places in the most sought after courses 
nationally, and with our vocational education students being very keenly sought after for apprenticeships and 
employment opportunities.  
 
Judged by any set of criteria, this has been a wonderful year for the co-curricular programme.  Outstanding 
team performances this year have included:  Gold and Bronze Medalists at the Australian Championships and 
Gold, Silver and Bronze Medalists at the Queensland Secondary Schools Championships in Sport Aerobics; 
First XIII Rugby League crowned Confraternity Shield Champions, GIO Trophy Champions and 
Rockhampton District School Sport Champions during an undefeated season; Open Boys Champions at the 
Queensland All Schools Touch Competition; Gold, Silver and Bronze at the Rowing Queensland State 
Championships here in Rockhampton, Queensland Country Champions for Girls and Boys Tennis; North 
Queensland Open Boys T20 Champions, Rockhampton District Sport Champions in Athletics and Cross 
Country as well as Football, Rugby Union, Netball, Waterpolo and Cricket.  Additionally, students from RGS 
have been selected for state and national teams in a wide range of sports and activities including baton 
twirling, swimming, equestrian, touch, gymnastics, hockey, rugby union and rugby league. The depth and 
breadth of such achievements by the teams and individuals of the School are astounding, and marks the co-
curricular programme as a special and unique part of an education at RGS. 
 
There have been great achievements in the cultural life of the School.  Two highlights were the magnificent 
Musical Performances with the Senior musical performance of Little Shop of Horrors, and the DMTA Showcase 
and performance of Shrek: The Musical Jr playing to delighted and packed houses.  The Music Department 
delivered an outstanding Musical Festival, with the programme providing a wide range of musical styles, 
ensembles and individual performances.  Additionally, 42 members of the School community participated in 
a tour of Paris, UK and Edinburgh with performances and workshops including EuroDisney and Kent 
College.  Our Drama students also engaged our thoughts and minds across the year with a range of 
performances.  
 
Like all good schools, in addition to graduating students who have actively participated in the classroom and 
in the co-curricular programme, RGS is also committed to enhancing students’ intrapersonal and 
interpersonal competencies.  We want to ensure they are optimally prepared for life beyond school - 
postsecondary education, worthwhile careers, active citizenship and a connected life.  Research supports the 
positive effect of high-quality, well-implemented social and emotional learning on both students and schools.  
We are therefore constantly looking to improve our personal development programme.  The field of positive 
education is a promising and increasingly evidence-based approach; it is based on the skills of positive 
psychology, a blend of traditional skills and the skills of wellbeing.  Psychologist and academic Martin 



18 
 

Seligman, the founder of positive psychology, believes wellbeing should be taught in schools – as an antidote 
to depression, as a vehicle for increasing life satisfaction, and as an aid to better learning and more creative 
thinking.  This year the Heads of School, Boarding and School Psychologists have explored the potential of 
character strengths and growth mindset, both significant sub-strands of positive psychology.  Progress has 
been encouraging with evidence from students and teachers that this approach is both worthwhile and will 
integrate very well with our RGS learning framework.  We will now be moving to fuller implementation over 
the next few years confident that these interventions will strengthen and enhance teaching, learning and 
wellbeing at The Rockhampton Grammar School in the future. 
 
Leadership does not only apply to individuals, but also to Schools.  Great schools pursue leadership 
opportunities beyond their own fences into the wider community; to not only develop within their own 
students a desire to serve a higher purpose than themselves, but also to demonstrate the value of education 
locally, nationally and internationally.  Evidence of the School’s commitment and achievement in this arena 
can be found in the preparation for the introduction of the ATAR system in the Senior School commencing 
in 2019, community service initiatives, and global education programmes. 
 
Preparation for the introduction of the ATAR system of School, which will begin for Year 11 students in 2019, 
has been a major focus of the year.  Significant projects have included:  the renovation of assessment in Years 
8 and 9 to reflect the change in instruments that will be used in the Senior School in 2019; development of 
the School’s Learning Framework to include the Marzano Taxonomy that provides the foundation for all 
senior courses; visits by groups of teachers to similar schools in Victoria to inform our preparation; changes in 
timetable offerings in Year 10 so that this year level provides students with an understanding of the new 
courses on offer (for example philosophy and reasoning and psychology); visits to the School by Dr David 
Loader who has met with staff, parents and students and provided great advice and questioning regarding our 
progress; and a large number of interactions, collaborations and engagement with the Queensland 
Curriculum and Assessment Authority, where RGS teachers are leading the way in the development of 
resources, creation of assessment instruments, marking of scripts and the formulation of the ATAR 
calculation structure.  The one common message coming out of all of these activities and interactions is that 
The Rockhampton Grammar School is leading the way in Queensland in its preparation for the new system. 
 
As I spoke about at the Formal Assembly in July this year, I want for each and every student here to not only 
be successful and achieve their personal best at school, but also to become adults who live rich, fulfilling lives, 
who participate fully as a part of numerous communities and contribute to democracy.  That they are people 
who set high goals for themselves and pursue these with passion.  That they understand that the responsibility 
of what is learnt at school is not that we treat our knowledge, skills and creative talents as ends in themselves; 
that we don’t use them selfishly and solely to advantage ourselves, but that we use them quite consciously for 
benefit and service to others. 
 
Large numbers of students are extensively involved in community service projects as diverse as completing 
humanitarian work related to Vietnam, Vanuatu and Tanzania; drought relief; the Red Shield Appeal; 
volunteering at aged care facilities; and fundraising for cancer research.  Very importantly, students are 
engaged in this service not because they have to, not because they are pushed and compelled to, but because 
they want to be involved. These are important activities and reflect the students’ character, the influence of 
parents and families, the School's approach to learning, the commitment from staff, and the partnerships that 
form between and among us as our students grow and develop.  
 
The Rockhampton Grammar School has a conscious policy of developing its young men and women to 
become global connected citizens – that they are “world ready”.  It is the School’s view that global awareness is 
an essential element in all our lives, and particularly both professionally and personally for students into the 
future.  In 2017 RGS became a Global Member of Round Square, which is a world-wide association of schools 
on five continents which promotes 6 ideals of learning: internationalism, democracy, environment, 
adventure, leadership and service.  Grammar’s involvement provides the opportunity to arrange teacher and 
student exchanges across the round square network.  Students will also have the opportunity to participate in 
local and international community service projects and leadership conferences.  Student global experiences 
this year have also featured student exchanges with schools from Canada, United Kingdom, Japan, China and 
New Zealand.  The School has established two new sister school relationships with YK Pao International 
School and Ningbo Haumo International School in China, and we are delighted to welcome two new 
international students to RGS in 2017 – Jack in Year 8 and Julien in Year 7. 
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The boarding experience has a special place at RGS.  The Rockhampton Grammar School is a Boarding 
School rather than a school with boarders.  This fact was highlighted for me at the Year 7 Formal Dinner in a 
Speech made by two Year 12 students, Ged and Meg, who shared some of their thoughts with the audience.  
In their words:  
“The life of a boarder can seem quite terrifying at first; well this is what it was like for Meg and I anyway.  However, we can 
assure you that along your way boarding here at RGS, that you will make the best of best friends.  Most of you joined the RGS 
family as strangers, but will leave this community with brothers and sisters, not by blood, but by choice. 
 
My journey at Rocky Grammar started in year 10.  Coming from a small country town called Clermont in the Central 
Highlands, there were 150 kids at my whole school.  Showing up to the opening assembly on my first day, I was shocked to see 
what looked like more people seated in the Space Frame than the whole of Clermont itself.  Grammar is such a welcoming 
place, so I was quickly accepted.  My most memorable moment here at Grammar would have to be the Outdoor Adventure 
Camp I attended in Year 10.  In July 2015, RGS took me on an exciting adventure to Borneo, which is an island off 
Indonesia.  12 of us spent two weeks there, hiking through the jungles and getting up close and personal with the native 
Orangutans and other animals.  It was such an experience to see how the people of Borneo lived.  We stayed at a local ‘long-
house’, which is a 30m long house that homed over 100 people.  Along with our stay, we helped fix and paint the walls, and 
socialised with the locals.  All of this would never be possible without the efforts and dedication that the staff and school give 
to their students.” 
Ged: “I think it is very important to appreciate everything the people around you do for you.  Never take it for granted, 
always be humble and always be kind.  Our advice for you tonight is to take every opportunity that arises and make the most 
of it.  Whether you are passionate about sport, music, drama, or academics, set your eyes on the prize and don’t look back.  Do 
not be afraid of what people think, you are great.  Always know that there will be people supporting you 100% of the way, 
and those are your boarding family.” 
 
The Trustees are a critical element in Grammar’s success.  Apart from their essential responsibility for good 
governance, their overall expertise and experience complement but also challenge the work of the 
Leadership Team.  For over two decades, Dr Jill South and Mr Mark Birkbeck have provided tireless service to 
RGS.  Our Chairperson, Mr Brad Beasley, has also provided tremendous service as a member of the Board of 
Trustees for 16 years and as Chairperson for the past 8 years.  He has provided leadership stability, vision and 
drive that have enabled RGS to prosper in both smooth and stormy seas.  Today, I express my personal 
gratitude to the Chairperson and members of the Board who have given me unequivocal support and 
encouragement during my headmastership. 
 
The performance and reputation of The Rockhampton Grammar School is critically dependent on the 
quality and effort of all our staff.  The School is outstandingly served by its teaching staff whose combination 
of professionalism, dedication, engagement and enthusiasm comes wrapped up in many packages – teachers 
of all ages and personalities from the outwardly quiet and stern to the life of the party.  But no matter how this 
special ingredient is wrapped, students recognise and respond to it – even if some try to be cool and disguise 
the fact.  I thank them all for their efforts, and want to affirm that they are the School’s greatest resource.  My 
particular thanks are extended to the members of the Leadership Team who it has been my privilege to work 
with and witness their professional growth and their individual and collective contribution to the School’s 
success. 
 
Finally, I want to acknowledge the significant contribution of our support staff who work with such loyalty, 
dedication and ownership for the School. 
 
It is a privilege to recognise the enthusiasm and efforts of the host of people who have supported the School 
in 2017.  In particular, I thank the following people for their work in critical community leadership roles:  Mrs 
Alaina Kennedy President of the Past Students’ Association; President of the Red and Black Association Mr 
Craig Denning; and Mrs Haylee Purcell President of the Boarder Parents’ Association.  Additionally, thank 
you to all those parents who have supported and served on the wide range of support groups. 
 
In conclusion, I wish to offer congratulations and best wishes to the whole student body for a fantastic year.  
Congratulations to our outstanding student leaders for 2017 - School Captains Elizabeth Clarke and Ged 
Moriarty and Vice Captains Mason Henderson and Meg Wilson who have been amazing in their personal 
efforts, in their role modelling and in their connection with the student body. 
 
I believe that leadership, confidence and understanding, tempered with compassion for others, are the keys, 
in effect, to living happy, interesting, rewarding and fulfilled lives.  In your education here at The 
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Rockhampton Grammar School you have been handed those keys: the School has devoted itself, together 
with your families, to giving you the attributes and capabilities – and the values – to be successful, achieving 
women and men.  I hope that you will use this gift and the rich heritage of your education and experience at 
this school wisely and well, and I wish each and every one of you lives that are happy and fulfilled. 
 
Thank you. 
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Staff Information 
 
School Leadership Team 
 
Headmaster Dr P.A. Moulds, PhD, BSc, BMus, GradDipEd, BEdSt(Hons), MACEL, 

MACE, FAIM, GAICD 
 
Board Secretary   Mrs K.J. Johnson, BBus, CPA, IML, CDec, AAICD 
 
Deputy Headmaster and  Mr A.A. Kelly, BEd, MEdStud, NTSD, HDipEd 
Head of Middle School 
 
Head of Senior School  Ms D.F. Wright, BSc(Hons), GradDipTchg 
 
Head of Primary School  Mr G.R. Hadwen, GradDip(EdAdmin), DipTchg 
 
Director of Teaching   Mrs R.E. Carter, BEd(Hons), Cert IV Training and Assessment 
and Learning 
 
Director of Co-Curriculum Mr T.R. Wells, BHMS, BEd 
 
Director of Early Learning Mrs A.S. Shackleton, ADLMgt, AdvDipChildren’s Services, 

AdvDipComSectMgt, CertIV Training and Assessment 
 
Director of Boarding  Mr S.J. Norford, BEd, DipTchg 
 
Director of Communications  Mr M.T. Donahue, BA, Cert IV Training and Assessment 
and Development  
 
 
 
Management Training and Development 
 
The School has a policy of providing paid leave and contributing to the associated training costs of staff 
to attend training and professional development courses approved by the School. 
 
During 2017 $162,766 was spent on staff training and associated costs.  Staff attended external training 
courses as well as those that were internally designed and delivered on campus. 
 
The School is committed to the ongoing professional development of its teachers to acknowledge and 
support the high standards of teaching expected from them. 
 
The ongoing professional development of our staff forms a critical element in the delivery of effective 
education and pastoral care at The Rockhampton Grammar School.  
 
Within its active professional learning culture, an extensive annual programme, delivered by highly 
qualified educational consultants and researchers, informs all aspects of the School.  
 
The Rockhampton Grammar School encourages teachers to undertake a Master’s Degree with Griffith 
University as part of their annual professional development studies.  It is the only programme of its 
kind in Australia. 
 
The RGS Professional Development Program has been developed because we believe that Student 
excellence at RGS is grounded in teaching excellence. 
 
By partnering with Griffith and investing in staff professional development RGS is enhancing an already 
engaging, motivating, and stimulating learning environment.  Our teachers' participation 
acknowledges in a very tangible way the importance we place on the integration of theory with 
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professional practice which will develop new and different learning opportunities for every student 
every day. 
 
By continuously improving RGS teaching practice through academic staff professional development, 
and critical reflection of School performance, we will ensure that our students continue to achieve to 
the best of their abilities. 
 
Boarding and non-teaching staff are also encouraged to avail themselves of professional development 
opportunities.  In 2017 twelve members of staff completed the the RGS Leadership Programme, in its 
second year of offer.  The RGS Leadership Programmed was developed by the Headmaster and Laurus 
Consulting, with the goal of developing leadership skills of staff of the School – both teaching and non-
teaching staff. 
 
 
Staff Recruitment and Retention 
 
The School employed 258.5 staff on a full time equivalent basis through 2017. 
 
The School was fully staffed throughout 2017. Eight members of the academic staff left and all were 
replaced through normal recruitment processes. Full time equivalent teaching staff numbered 117.0. 
The permanent separation rate is 5.0%. 
 
The School is able to plan for such turnover by requiring teaching staff to give six weeks term time 
notice. This period is set out in the School’s Enterprise Agreement. 
 
The availability of child care with the School’s Early Learning Centre (ELC) to staff returning from 
maternity leave is a major incentive for staff to return to work if they chose to do so. The School makes 
every endeavour to find places in the ELC for returning staff. 
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School Operations 
 
At the State Census day in Term 1 the School opened with 1343 students (2016: 1379) of which 429 
were primary students and 914 were secondary students.  Boarding students numbered 338.  The year 
finished with a total enrolment of 1365.   
 
The boarding population remained steady at over 330 boarders throughout the year.  This is due in no 
small part to the excellent staff and facilities, as well as “value for money” fees.  Boarding numbers have 
remained at healthy levels throughout 2017. 
 
The Primary School continued its strong performance in 2017.  RGS Primary students enjoy learning 
with specialist teachers in classes such as art, physical education, cooking, music, and Japanese.  These 
classes enable students to develop in-depth knowledge of the subject areas, and prepares them for the 
Middle School.  
 
Stage 2 of the RGS Early Learning Centre opened in October 2016.  The development includes a new 
building with modern facilities, a brighter, welcoming Reception area, and an expansive natural play 
space with a fort, amphitheatre, mud kitchen and swings.  This expansion to the ELC has increased the 
licenced capacity to 138 happy thriving children.  The Centre operates at full capacity, with a strong 
waitlist.  The RGS Early Learning Centre has been rated as Exceeding National Quality Standards, and 
in 2017 was invited to participate in the Exemplary Educators Study through Charles Sturt University. 
 
The School continues to operate a 1 to 1 tablet computer programme for all students from Year 7 to 
Year 12.  Primary students have access to computer technology via a set of desktop or tablet computers 
in every classroom. 
 
 
2017 Academic Results 
 
The School’s motto, Macte Virtute Et Litteris (Grow in character and scholarship) highlights the fact an 
education at The Rockhampton Grammar School is far more than what an OP or a VET qualification 
represents.  To instil the desire to become a lifelong learner and to value the importance of learning is a 
central aim of all RGS teachers.  Additionally, all staff support the aim of ensuring students realise the 
importance of community and that their actions embody this.  These goals are not measured in the data 
released by QCAA but it is crucial to acknowledge them as they are integral to the School. 
 
Of the 167 RGS Year 12 students issued a Senior Education Profile (SEP), 127 were OP eligible with 102 
students in attendance for the Core Skills Test.  
 
The Year 12 cohort of 2017 performed very well with four students awarded an OP 1, (3.15%). State data 
shows 722 students received an OP 1 in 2017, (2.77%). 
 
The percentage of RGS students achieving an OP 1-5 was 28.35%, which equates to 36 students.  The 
State result for 2017 was 22.13%. 
 
Eighty-eight (69.29%) of our OP graduates achieved an OP 1-10 which is outstanding in comparison to 
the state figure of 53.06%. This is the second best performance for the School in the OP 1-10 bracket 
since the 1992 introduction of the OP system.  
 
The lowest OP which can be awarded by QCAA in the current system is an OP 25. It is pleasing to report 
that no Grammar student received an OP over 20. In fact of the 127 OP eligible students only 10 achieved 
a result between 16 and 20. 
 
One hundred and two OP eligible students sat the two day Core Skills Test held during Term 3 this year. 
Sixty-nine students (67.65%) achieved an A or B level on the CST and this is positive in comparison to 
45.1% for the State. 
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One hundred and sixty-five graduates successfully completed the minimum credit point requirement 
and were awarded their Queensland Certificate of Education (QCE). This is an outstanding 
achievement and a testament to the efforts of all staff, parents and students.  Two students completed a 
university subject while at school. 
 
  



26 
 

 
2017 Overall Position (OP) Results 

 

Result RGS State 

1 3.15% 2.77% 

1-5 28.35% 22.13% 

1-15 92.13% 82.31% 

1-20 100% 98.38% 

 
 
It is important to document the fact that 156 of the 167 graduating students successfully completed and 
were awarded a VET qualification (ranging from a Certificate I to III level). In fact, 147 students 
achieved a Certificate I, 57 a Certificate II and 34 a Certificate III. There were also 11 students who 
completed or plan to complete a school based apprenticeship or traineeship in addition to 7 
CQUniversity CSaT students. Such data highlights the value given to VET by the School.  
 
 
Services Provided 
 
RGS aims to provide a disciplined, challenging and stimulating learning environment, to inspire our 
students to become successful lifelong learners, responsible local and global citizens, and men and 
women of strong ethical and moral character.  We promote high standards of scholarship and work 
with all members of the School community to pursue personal excellence in their intellectual, physical, 
creative and emotional development.   
 
RGS aims to attract, retain and develop a high quality staff, in all curriculum and non-curriculum areas, 
to provide the best standard of education possible.  The school also aims to continually upgrade and 
expand its physical resources to provide a dynamic educational environment.  
 
 
Curriculum 
 
Primary (Years Prep – 6) 
 
The Rockhampton Grammar Primary prides itself on its achievements in the academic areas and 
students invariably achieve very well on state and national tests.  Complementing classroom work in Key 
Learning Areas is extension in academically stimulating areas through Dimensions of Learning and the 
RGS Learning Framework.  Teachers have constructed learning programs for extension and 
reinforcement.  Students can also choose to be part of an extensive list of co- curricular activities in 
both cultural and sporting areas. 
 
The Rockhampton Grammar Primary is a tight knit community where every teacher takes an active role 
in the development of each child.  Parents as well as GAP students from overseas countries help to 
enrich the learning.  Learning takes place in a variety of settings such as classrooms, Ritamada, tours 
and camps.  Social skills are accentuated during these times. 
 
 
Middle School (Years 7 – 9) 

 
The Middle School Course is divided into two sections:- 
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Section A: Core Learning Areas  
English, Mathematics and Science are taught across 6 periods per week, SOSE (Studies of Society and 
Environment) is taught across 5, and HPE (Health and Physical Education) is taught across 3 comprising 
of 2 practical lessons and 1 Health lesson.  

 
Core Subjects - English, Mathematics, Science, Social Sciences, and Health and Physical Education.  All 
students are required to study the five core subjects.  In Year 9 students have the option of selecting 
Advanced Mathematics or Mathematics, and students may be invited to join an Intervention Mathematics 
class.  A General Science course is offered as an alternative to Science in Year 9.  
 
Section B: Elective Learning Areas  
Each subject is taught across 4 periods per week in Year 8 and 6 periods per week in Year 9. In Year 7 
students experience the elective subject areas through a rotation programme each term. 

 
The School offers 13 electives in Year 8 and 14 in Year 9.  Each student in Year 8 must study three (3) 
electives from this selection and each student in Year 9 must study two (2) from this selection. 
 
In 2017 the electives offered were: 
 
Agriculture, Drama, Music, Art, Business Enterprise and Management, Catering and Fashion, Catering, 
Digital Literacy and Technologies, Graphics, Sports Science, Design and Technology, Workshop and 
Japanese.  Marine Operations is an elective in Year 9 only. 
 
 
Senior School (Years 10 – 12) 
 
Subjects offered in the Senior School during 2017 are as follows: 
 
Accounting, Agriculture, Ancient History, Art, Business Management, Biology, Chemistry, Dance, 
Drama, English, English Extension, English Communication, Legal Studies, Geography, Graphics, 
Health Studies, Physical Education, Information Processing & Technology, Japanese, Aquatics, 
Mathematics A, Mathematics B, Mathematics C, Pre-Vocational Mathematics, Modern History, Music, 
Music Extension, Physics, Technology Studies. 
 
The Senior School also offered the following Vocational Education courses during 2017: 
 
Certificate III Agriculture, Certificate III Beauty Services, Certificate III Dance, Certificate IV Dance, 
Certificate II Engineering pathways, Certificate II Fitness with Sport & Recreation embedded, 
Certificate III Fitness, Certificate  II Hospitality, Certificate II Information Digital media Technology, 
Certificate II Outdoor Recreation 
 
 
Educational Programme 
 
The School uses the QCAA syllabi for all senior school studies in Years 11 and 12.  From Prep to Year 10 
the school curriculum is based on QCAA Key Learning Area syllabi material. 
 
Work programs are continually reviewed and updated.  Teaching staff have embraced the critical 
review of teaching practices and delivery by colleagues through classroom visits and in staff professional 
development days.  Over twenty teaching staff of The Rockhampton Grammar School are members of 
QCAA review panels at both district and State level. 
 
The Australian Curriculum sets consistent national standards to improve learning outcomes for all 
young Australians. The School monitors the suitability of its curriculum through a range of measures 
including student destinations before and after Year 12. The School offers a broad range of subjects 
enabling students to take a vocational education pathway following the Vocational Education and 
Training Framework as well as academic pathways through the Queensland Core Skills Test and an OP 
score.  
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The Australian Professional Standards for Teachers (APST) are a public statement that describes the 
professional knowledge, professional practice and professional engagement required of teachers. They 
comprise seven Standards describing what teachers should know and be able to do. They are 
interconnected, interdependent and reflect the complex role of teaching.  The Standards are 
organised into four career stages – Graduate, Proficient, Highly Accomplished, Lead – to reflect a 
continuum of teacher’s developing professional expertise.  RGS supports its teaching staff throughout 
this continuum through mentoring and professional development programmes. 
 
The Rockhampton Grammar School applies the Code of Ethics for Teachers in Queensland and all 
teaching staff are bound by this code. 

 
  
 Global Education and Round Square 

 
The Rockhampton Grammar School continues its commitment to Global Education, global citizenship 
and the Round Square programme. 
 
In 2017 the relationship with Wellington College continued through the Round Square ‘warm-bed’ 
exchange programme.  This programme saw a reciprocal exchange take place as an RGS student 
travelled to Wellington College UK, and a Wellington College student visited RGS.  This month-long 
exchange was particularly well received by both students and schools, and similar exchanges are 
anticipated in the future.  28 RGS students had applied for the 2017 placement and an interview 
process took place to find the successful participant. 
  
RGS continues to enjoy a positive international reputation with enquiries from Tamagawa Academy 
Tokyo and Markham College Peru.  Tamagawa Academy links were made at a February conference and 
RGS has students keen to exchange in the future.  A Year 10 student was a visitor to Regents School 
Bangkok via the Round Square programme in November and December 2017.  RGS will look to host a 
student in return in 2018.  There are currently 15 students seeking similar Round Square exchanges 
around the world in 2018. 
  
The programme emphasis on service and culture was expanded in 2017 with a group visit to Vietnam to 
build in a village and interact at a school.  A large group visited Dunedin schools and spent time with 
infants and with a Maori education programme.  Furthermore, students spent time raising money pre-
tour to then spend in-country to assist with their planned programmes.  A group also visited Carnarvon 
Gorge and interacted with an indigenous guide and saw many ancient indigenous sites.  
 
In December 2017, 13 students and 2 staff participated in a language immersion trip to Japan.  Plans 
are in place for a school visit in 2019 and 2020.  Links continue to be made with China and students 
and staff from YK Pao Shanghai will visit RGS in February 2018.  
 
RGS Round Square certificates were awarded to recognise student involvement in Round Square 
opportunities and assistance in promoting this programme’s successes to the wider school community.  
Students that have been involved in this programme at a significant level were recognised.  For the first 
time the King Constantine Round Square Medal was awarded to a Year 12 student at the 2017 RGS 
Speech Day.  
 
Students find the international and domestic cultural experiences and opportunities both challenging 
and rewarding.  These are set to expand further in 2018. 
 
 
Boarding 
 
Ethos 
 
To provide quality pastoral care to all those students (male and female) who choose to board at the 
School and to help and guide them to reach their full potential.  The School’s focus on boarding is that 
RGS is a boarding school not a school with a boarding section.   
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The Rockhampton Grammar School is the largest co-educational boarding school in Queensland and is 
in the top four in Australia.  
 
Boarding enrolments are predominantly from rural and provincial central Queensland, with a number 
of indigenous students from the Cape York Leaders Program, and a small number of international 
students from China. 
 
All boarding facilities are air conditioned. 
 
The Boarding Houses are: 
 
School House – Years 7, 8, 9, 10 boys - 97 single beds in dormitory style accommodation. 
 
Coombe House – Years 10 and 11 boys – 44 beds (double rooms) 
 
Luck House – Years 11 and 12 boys – 45 single rooms 
 
Girls House – Middle Dorm – Years 7, 8 and 9 girls – 50 beds (triple and quad rooms) 
 
Girls House – Upper Dorm – Years 9 and 10 girls – 49 beds (single, double and quad rooms) 
 
Girls House – Lower Dorm – Years 11 and 12 girls – 20 beds (single and double rooms) 
 
Boland Girls –Year 11 girls – 43 beds (single, double and quad rooms) 
 
Palmer Dorm – Year 12 girls – 20 single rooms 
 
The senior boys houses, Luck and Coombe, are modern single or double accommodation buildings. 
 
The junior boys house, known as School House and situated in the original school building, is the 
home for up to 97 boys in Years 7 to 10. This House has 2 separate air conditioned wings or Houses, 
Wheatcroft and Wheatley, each with their own common room area.  
 
Girls House and Palmer Girls dormitory are modern dormitories that are home for 139 girls ranging 
from Year 7 to Year 12.  Palmer is a senior dormitory with single room accommodation while the lower 
floor of Girls House also is a senior area with single rooms.  
 
Middle and Upper Girls are dormitory style accommodation split into pods of four beds for privacy.  
Palmer and Lower Girls houses features refurbished study areas and large common room areas.    
 
Boland Girls provides accommodation for 34 Year 11 girls in single or twin accommodation. 
  
Professional and experienced carers and their families staff all of these houses. The majority of our 
boarding staff are teachers or full time boarding staff. 
 
 
Co-Curricular Activities 
 
Sport 
 
Sport, like music and drama, continues to be a jewel in the co-curricular crown and sets a benchmark in 
terms of participation of students and involvement of staff. 
 
Sports offered to Secondary School students include:  
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Athletics, Basketball, Cricket, Cross Country, Football, Netball, Rowing, Rugby Union, Rugby League, 
Swimming, Tennis, Touch, Water Polo, Australian Rules Football, Beach Volleyball, Equestrian, Futsal, 
Golf, Hockey, SCUBA, Sports Aerobics, Tae Kwon Do, Triathlon. 
 
The Primary School also participates in participates in Soccer, AFL, OzTag, Cross Country, Swimming, 
Rugby League, Netball, Hockey, Tennis, Athletics, Touch Football, Softball, Cricket, Teeball and 
Basketball. 
 
 
Other Co-Curricular Activities include:  
 
Cadets, Chess, Duke of Edinburgh, Fitness, Hospitality, Music, Musical (Secondary and Primary), 
Optiminds, Public Speaking, SCUBA, Show Cattle Team, Art, Maths Team Challenge, Mooting, 
Photography, Robotics and Signing Choir.  
 
Throughout 2017 students and staff participated in a number of tours and major competitions in the 
co-curricular field: 

- Cricket – Biannual tour of Sydney, playing 4 games of cricket against Sydney schools. 
- Netball – Firsts and Seconds Netball teams travelled to New Zealand for 2 weeks playing 6 

games of Netball. 
- Rowing – Rowers of all ages competed in Queensland Club State Championships in 

Beaudesert, National Championships in Sydney, South Queensland Championships in 
Beaudesert, Central Queensland Championships in Bundaberg, and North Queensland 
Championships in Townsville. 

- Rugby Union – First XV and U15 teams competed in Ballymore Cup in Brisbane. 
- Rugby League – Frist XIII competed in Confraternity Shield in Brisbane and played games in 

Townsville and Brisbane as a part of the GIO Trophy. 
- Touch Football – RGS teams competed in the Queensland All Schools Touch Championships 

in Brisbane. 
- Tennis – Senior Tennis Players travelled to Melbourne on a tour. 
- Sport Aerobics – Athletes competed in the Queensland State Championships in Brisbane and 

National Championships in Geelong. 
 
 
The Arts 
  
Music 
  
The School has a number of vocal and musical ensembles including the Symphonic Concert Band, Big 
Band, Jazz Ensemble, String Orchestra, String Ensemble, Middle School Concert Band, Primary and 
Secondary Percussion Ensembles, Middle and Senior School Woodwind Ensembles, Secondary Flute 
Ensemble, Senior Choir, Chamber Choirs, Glee Choirs, Secondary Signing Choir, Primary Choirs, 
Primary Concert Bands, Primary Jazz Ensemble, Primary Woodwind Ensemble, Primary Rock Band, and 
Primary Signing Choirs.  These ensembles perform for various school and community functions as well 
as Eisteddfods.     
 
Paris - UK Music Tour  
 
In the September vacation period, RGS toured a Big Band through Paris and on through England and 
Scotland.  This 14-day tour provided performance opportunities and exchanges at EuroDisney, Kent 
College - Canterbury, Public Secondary Schools, and with various Community ensembles.  The tour 
provided many cultural and educational opportunities for our students, as well as lasting memories.   
 
Music Festival 
  
The Rockhampton Grammar School Music Festival was again a great success in 2017.  This annual 
celebration and showcase of the musical talent of students and staff of The Rockhampton Grammar 
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School entertained the audience throughout the night with an amazing array of talented soloists and 
group items. 
  
Musical Theatre 
 
The School’s musical productions were again outstanding and successful. 
 
The efforts of students, staff and parents were well rewarded by welcoming and appreciative audiences 
at each of the three public performances of the secondary school production “Little Shop of Horrors”. 
 
 
Dance and Musical Theatre 
 
The RGS Dance and Musical Theatre Academy continued in 2017 holding classes in a large range of 
dance styles in its state of the art dance studios. Over 140 students attended the Academy ranging in 
ages from 3 years to 18 years of age. The Academy enjoyed a highly successful performance year with 
successful entries in the local Rockhampton Eisteddfod and through the presentation of its biennial 
production “Showcase” which featured the musical “Shrek the Musical Jr”. This production played to a 
sold out crowd. Students were also highly successful in their various technical examinations in classical 
ballet, tap, jazz, highland and speech & drama.  
 
Drama and Dance 
 
Drama and Dance continues to grow both as a subject area and an extracurricular activity at The 
Rockhampton Grammar School with productions ranging from Greek Theatre and Shakespeare to 
modern drama.  All year levels enjoy presenting productions to an audience throughout the year and 
increased numbers in 2017 in the lower grades of Year 8 and 9 Drama have highlighted the success of 
the programmes offered. The department began looking closely at its work programmes in Years 7-10 
in preparation for the introduction of the new Senior Syllabus in 2019, ensuring a seamless transition 
for students into this new system, whilst maintaining the appropriate focus on its students still finishing 
school in the current OP system.  
 
 
Students with Disabilities 
 
The Rockhampton Grammar School values the diversity of all students including those with special 
educational needs, recognises the right of all students to equitable access to the curriculum and offers 
educational programmes specific to the needs of students with disabilities. 
 
The School has a written Disabilities Policy which sets out the School’s commitment. 
 
 
Associated Support Groups 
 
In 2017 The Rockhampton Grammar School Red and Black Association Inc. continued its role as the 
main parent support group of the School.  The Red and Black Association plays an important role as an 
additional means of communication between parents and the School.  The Association also provides 
welcome monetary support for projects and causes within the School. 
 
The Red and Black Association, along with The RGS Past Students Association and the Boarder Parents 
Association, provide a valuable support structure to the School. 
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Financial Results and Key Statistics 
 
In 2017 The Rockhampton Grammar School recorded another healthy operating surplus and ended 
the year in a strong financial position. There was an operating surplus of $1,573,801 after interest 
payments and depreciation. 
 
 

 2017 2016 

   

Fee Income $18,427,700 $18,902,415 

Grants Income $14,204,466 $13,691,455 

Other Income $5,989,876 $5,603,533 

TOTAL INCOME $38,622,042 $38,197,403 

   
Employee Expenses $24,542,982 $24,229,311 

Supplies and Services $9,043,598 $9,221,221 

Depreciation $2,483,176 $2,231,245 

Finance Costs $978,485 $1,041,374 

TOTAL EXPENSES $37,048,241 $36,723,151 

   
Operating Result From 
Continuing Operations 

$1,573,801 $1,474,252 

 
 
 
Key Performance Indicators 
 
 

Student Numbers 
 

 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Primary 458 544 479 456 429 

Secondary 878 875 951 928 914 

Total Students 1,336 1,419 1,430 1,384 1,343 

Boarding 345 337 362 361 338 
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Operating Efficiency (Profitability) Per Student 
 

   2013   2014   2015   2016   2017 

Total Income $31,138,246 $35,468,096 $38,209,298 $38,197,403 $38,622,042 

Net Surplus $3,343,168 $6,145,705 $6,090,914 $4,746,871 $5,035,462 

Net Operating Margin 
(Before Depreciation 
and Interest) 

 
0.08 

 
0.17 

 
0.16 

 
0.12 

 
0.13 

Benchmark    0.12 0.12              0.12 0.12 0.12 

Student Numbers 1,336 1,419 1,430 1,384 1,343 

Operating Efficiency 
(Profitability Per 
Student) 

 
$2,502 

 
$4,331 

 
$4,259 

 

 
$3,430 

 
$3,749 

 
Net Operating Margin measures the cash surplus from every dollar of gross income. This means that 
from every dollar of income 13 cents is available for strategic development.  Income includes Capital 
Receipts from Government when received. 
 
 
 
Capital Debt Ratio 
 

 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Capital Debt at 
End of Year 

$18,476,704 $17,576,358 $16,599,617 $15,509,807 $14,424,856 

Student Numbers 1,336 1,419 1,430 1,384 1,343 

Debt Per Student $13,830 $12,386 $11,608 $11,206 $10,741 
 
 
 
Capital Infrastructure 
 
A great deal of work has gone into maintaining the physical fabric of the School in 2017 to ensure a 
quality environment for students and staff and to cater appropriately with the development of the 
School. 
 
Throughout recent years the School has embarked on a substantial capital development programme, 
particularly to accommodate the inclusion of Year 7 in to the Secondary School, which brought 
additional day and boarding students to RGS.  2017 was a year of comparatively less extensive capital 
development than recent years, instead focusing on less extensive upgrades and renovations to various 
boarding and teaching spaces. 
 
2017 saw the completion of the development of a courtyard area adjacent to the Year 7 home rooms.  
This project transformed a dull area in to a space with a much more natural feel, featuring established 
plantings, timber decking, seating, shade, synthetic turf, and surfaces suitable for playing handball. 
 
A section of paving adjacent to School House was upgraded during 2017, whilst retaining the heritage 
look and feel of the original school building and surrounds. 
 
Home Economics students, staff, and parent volunteers welcomed the installation of air conditioning in 
to the cooking rooms, ready for the first lesson of 2018. 
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Community Objectives 
 
The School has contributed to the State Government’s stated objectives for the community by: 
 

• Improving frontline services for families - by the School contributing to achieving better 
education and training outcomes. 

• Creating jobs and a diverse economy – by the School ensuring a safe, productive and fair 
workplace.  

• Protecting the environment – through participation in the Reef Guardian Schools program.  
 
 
Information Systems 
 
The School operates the following major software systems:  
 

• TASS 
• Sage MicrOpay 

 
TASS is a fully integrated school administration system specifically designed for K-12 schools.  TASS  
handles all areas of the School’s administration, both financial (except payroll) and academic.  
 
The School takes advantage of TASS portal functionality, including a fully integrated Learning 
Management System, Student Café, Teacher Kiosk and Parent Lounge. 
 
Teacher Kiosk is a portal designed for teachers to provide them with easy access to: 

• Student Records 
• Student Attendance 
• Student and Teacher Timetables 
• Notices and Calendar Events 
• Pastoral Care Records 
• Budget Information for Budget Managers 
• Learning Management System 

 
The Student Cafe portal allows students do the following anywhere that they have an internet 
connection:  

• Access their own timetable 
• Email their teachers 
• View their own Academic Reports 
• Access information for and submit class assignments 
• Access other student relevant information posted by teachers 
• Access the Learning Management System 

 
Parent Lounge, similar to Student Café, enables parents to access information about their child and the 
School within the one web-based portal. Through Parent Lounge, parents can: 

• View details of the student, including timetables, Academic Reports, attendance data, details of 
homework and assignments 

• View notices and calendar events 
• Update their own contact details 
• Pay their fee account 
• View other School information 

 
Sage MicrOpay provides the software to manage the School’s payroll and human resources information 
systems. 
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The School has well-established information technology resources for educational use including a 1 to 
1 Tablet PC programme for Years 7 to 12.  All teaching staff are supplied with a Tablet PC to 
complement their education programmes. 
 
The School aims to be compliant with the principles underpinning both Information Standard 40: 
Recordkeeping and Information Standard 31: Retention and Disposal of Public Records. Queensland 
State Archives released a revised General Retention and Disposal Schedule, effective from 1 September 
2016, with which the School will comply. 
 
 
 

Other Matters 
 
Information about the following matters can be found on the School’s website at: 
www.rgs.qld.edu.au/annual-reports or on the Queensland Government Open Data Website at:  
https://data.qld.gov.au 
 
Overseas Travel on behalf of the School 
Consultancies  

http://www.rgs.qld.edu.au/annual-reports
https://data.qld.gov.au/
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 
 
ATARS   Australian Tertiary Admission Ranks 
 
DMTA   Dance and Musical Theatre Academy 
 
NAPLAN  National Assessment Program – Literacy and Numeracy 
 
NSSAB   Non-State Schools Accreditation Board 
 
OP   Overall Position 
 
PREP   Preparatory Year – Pre Year 1 
 
QCAA   Queensland Curriculum and Assessment Authority 
 
RGS   The Rockhampton Grammar School 
 
VET   Vocational Education and Training 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
for tlae PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

Fee income 
Gnint .iocamc 
Other income 
Total laceme from Contiumg Operatiom 

Fmplo),:e CltpCllllCS 

Supplies and 91:n'ices 
Depo:ciation 
F"mancc casas 
Tatal Espemes from Co.minfae Opentio.m 

Operadng .Result frum CODtinulng Operation 

Odtcr Compnlaelllive htcome 
Increase (dc:crcase) in asset revaluation surplus 
Toal Other Compreheaaive Income 

Total Comprellemive Income 

Notes 

2(a) 
2(a) 
2{a) 

2(b) 
2{b) 
2(b) 
2{b) 

10 

2017 
$ 

18,427,700 
14,204,466 
S,989,876 

38,622,042 

24,542,982 
9,043,598 
2,483,176 

9782485 
37,048,241 

1,573,801 

1,573,801 

The acoompanying notes form pan of these statemcn1S 

2 

2016 
s 

18.902,415 
13,691,455 
S,603,533 

38,197,403 

24,229,311 
9,221,221 
2,231,245 
1.041~74 

36,723,151 

1,474,252 

1,474,252 



BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF TU ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Curremt Aneta 
Cam and rail equivalents 
Receivables 
lnvcnm:ies 
Other 
Total CUJTSt AateU 

Noa-CurreatAueta 
Land and buildings 
Plant and cqwpmeot 
Total Noa-Curent Assets 

Curent Llabilltia 
Payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Accrued employee benefits 
Other 
Total Cmrent Uuilities 

Non...cunnt LiabDitiel 
Other financial liabilities 
Accrued employc:c bc:ncfits 
Total Noa-Current Liabilities 

NetAuets 

Eqalty 
Retained surpluses 
Asset revaluation surplus 

Total Equity 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSfflON 
n 11t 31 DECEMBER 2017 

Notes 

3 
4 

s 

6 
6 

7 
8 
9 
7 

8 
9 

10 

2017 
$ 

3,948,620 
818,475 
319,244 
440,413 

5.526,152 

74,994,228 
3,656,894 

78,651,122 

84,177,874 

1,756,962 
1,997,081 
3,489,494 

771 395 
8,014,932 

12.4Tl,775 
378,871 

12,806,646 

20,821,578 

63,356,296 

42,508,603 
20,847,693 

63,356,296 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 

3 

2016 
$ 

2.195,145 
611,215 

564,989 
3,371J49 

15,618.151 
3,910,327 

79.589.084 

82,960,433 

1,277,869 
2.063,435 
3,214,671 

666,574 
7,222,549 

13,446,372 
509.017 

13.955,389 

21 ,177,938 

61.782.495 

40,934,802 
20.847,693 

61 ,782.495 



BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
for the PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

Balanee 1 January 2017 

Operating result from continuing operations 

Other comprehensive income: 
~ Increase/(Decrease) iri asset revaluation swplus 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 

Transactions with owners as owners 
- Reclassification of surplus on disposal of revalued assets 

Balance 31 December 2017 

Balance l January 2016 

Operating result from continuing operations 

Other comprehensive income: 

Reclassification of surplus on disposal of revalued assets 

Balance 31 December 2016 

Accumulated 
Surpluses 

s . 

40,934,802 

1,573,801 

1,573,801 

42,!0!603 

39,436,264 

1,474,252 

24,286 

40~802 

The accompanying notes form part of~ statements 

4 

ABSet Revaluation 
Surplo1 (Note 10) 

$ 

20,847,693 

20,847,693 

20,871,979 

(24,286) 

20,847,693 

Total Equity 
s 

61,782,495 

1,573,801 

1,573,801 

63,356,296 

60,308,243 

1,474,252 

61,782,495 



BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

STATDUNT OF CASH FLOWS 
for tbe PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

Notes 2017 2016 
$ s 

Cash ftows from Operating MtiYities 

laflows: 
Feeinamr: 18,341,497 19,108,775 
Grant income 14,204,465 13,691,455 
Other income S,889,205 5,481,468 
Interest income 102,549 122,065 
GST received from.ATO 533,179 935,1&2 
GST collected from rnstomcrs 1,227,405 11164,580 

40,298,300 40,503,525 

O.t8ow1: 
Employee expmses (24,744,705) (24,194,728) 
Supplies and sccviccs (8,395,307) (9,407,374) 
Interest paid (978,486) {1,041,374) 
OST remitted to ATO (908,827) (782,425) 
GST paid to suppliers (8611479) {1J19J61} 

(35,888,804) (36,645,268) 

Net cas._ pnmded by operatm& acdvities ll(b) 4.409,496 3,858,257 

Cada Flows from IDYestiag Aetlvidea 

laftcnr1: 
Sales of property, p1ant & cquipmmt 4,967 

O.dlows: 
Payments for property, plant & equipmau (1.5761038) (4,79S1510) 

Net au media av~ acdYtties (11571,071) (417951510) 

Cash Flows from Fillaachlg Adhities 

laflows: 
Bmow:ings 

01dflowl: 
Borrowing mlemptions (1,084,950) (1,055,790} 

NetC81111 froml(med) in fiupdag adivitles (1 ,084,950) (l 10SS1790) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash held 1,753,475 (1,993,043} 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning offinmcial year 2,195,145 411881188 
Cash u.d call eqaivaleata at end of flnandal ye11r ll(a) 3,948,620 2al9S,14S 

The accompanying notes fmn part of these statements 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Not.es lo and formial part of the mucllll ltmemen111 
for the PERIOD .ENDED 31 DEC.EMBERl017 

Note 1 Suwutry of SignfflcaBt AtteMqti~ Policies 

(a) Buis of Accounting 

The financial report is a geocnl JJll[J)(* financi.al lqKllt that has been pt-eparcd in amxdance with Awib:alian ~ 
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements. Australian Accounting Intapretatims and other authoritative pl'Ol10UllCCIII of 
the Austtalian Accounting Standards Boaid. In addition the financial statcmmts comply with the Treasurer's Minimum 
Reporting Requircmcms. and scction 43 of the Y.IDIIDcial and Pcrfonnance Managc:mcnt Staodanl 2009. The Sdwol is 
establishcd under the Grammar Schools Act 2016 and is a State Government Stalutory Body. 

The financial report has been prepm:d on an accmals basis and is based on historical costs modified by the revaluation of 
selected nan-cwreot assets. financials assets and finaocials liabilities for which the fair value basis of aecounting has been 
applied. 

The following is a summary of the significant acwunting policies adopted by The Rockbamptoo. Grammar School in the 
preparation of the financial report. The accounting policies have been coosist.eotly applied unless otbcrwisc stated. 

(b) The Reportina Entity 

The financial stataomts include the value of all income, c:xpcDliCS, assets, liabilities and equity of The Rockhamptm Grammar 
School ("the School"). For financial n:pmting purposes, the entity is a not-for-pofit cotity. 

(e) laco1m 

Fees and dwgcs including Tuition and Boarding Fees that an: cbarged by the Schoo) are recognised as income when invoices 
fir the related goods/services are issued. 

Interest Ineome is recognised as income at the encl of each month that it is received. Other Sundry Income is m:oguisc:d as 
imxxne u it accmcs. 

(d) Gnntl mul Contrlbatiom 

OraDl income micived from the State or Commcinwealth Govc:mmmt is recognised in the Statement of Compdimsive Income 
when the entity obtains control of the IJ'Bnl and it is probable that the ecooomic benefits gained from the grant will flow to The 
Roclcbampton Grammar School and the amount of the grant can be measured reliahly. 

If cmditions an: attached to the grant which must be satisfied bebc it is eligible to rc:ccive the grant, the m:ogoitiOD of the 
grant as income will be dcfcaed until those conditions arc satisfied. 

Whae gJmt income is received whereby The Rockhampton Grammar Sc:bool incurs an obliption to deliver ccmamic value 
directly bade to the contnoutor, this is coosidered a rc:ciproca) transaction and the lTclD1: income is RCOgDiscd in the statement of 
financial position as a liability until the service bas been dclivm:d to the contnoutor, othcrwisc the grant is rcc:ognised as 
income Oil receipt. 

(e) Casi!. ud Cull EqalvaleDD 

For 1he purposes of the Staterncrrt of Financial Position and the Statement of Cash Rows, cash assets include all cash and 
cheques n:cei:pted but not banked at 31 Dcambtz as well as deposits at call with financial instituticns. ll also includes 
investmmts with short periods to maturity that are readily amverttl>le to cash Oil hand at the School's or issuer's option and that 
are subject to a low risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. 

(f) Receivables 

Trade debtors are n:cognised at the nominal amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery. Settlement of these amounts is 
required within 14 days from invoice date. 

The collcctibility of receivables is assessed periodically with provision being made fer impairmm.t. All known bad debts were 
written-off as at 31 December. lncn:ases for provision for impairment are based on loss events. 

Other dcbt<n geoenlly ar.iae from traosacti.ODS outside 1he usual opc:rating activities of the School and are n,cognised at their 
assessed values. Terms arc a maximum of 30 days, no intcn:st is cbmgc:d and no security is obtained. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Nata to IUld forming part of the flaaw::hl mtemem 
for die PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

Note 1 Smnmuy of Significut Accoantiag Policies (coot) 

(I) Acquisldom of Auets 

Actual cost is WICd foc the initial :recording of all non-ammt physical and intangible asset acquisitions. Cost is detcrmioed as 
1hc value given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition. including all other costs incurred in getting the assels 
ready for use. including arcliitects' ~ and engineering design fees. However. any training costs arc expensed as incurred. 

Assets acquired at oo cost or fur nominal consideration arc n::cognised at their fair value at date of acquisition in accordaooc 
with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment.. 

(la) Property, Plaat and .Eqaipmcot 

Items of property. plant and equipment with a cost or olhcr value equal to or in excess of the following thresholds are recognised 
for fiDaocial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition: 

Buil~ and Infrastructure 
Land 
Other (mcluding heritage & cultmal) 

Items with a lesser value arc expensed in the year of acquisition. 

$10,000 
$1 

$1,000 

Land improvemeois undertaken by the School are indudcd with Building.,. 

The land on which the school is situated is subject to a Deed of Grant in Trust. This trust states that the land is rmined by the 
Oown, however due to the land being administered by the school. and all economic benefits being attnoutablc to the: school, tbc: 
value of the land $4,000,000 is mcognised. in the face of these financial statcmcots. This value has hem determined after 
consideration of the location of the land, and discounting due to the ratrictive Deed of Grant in Trust. 

(I) Inventories 
Inventories arc recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable ·va1ue. 

(J) Revalwdiom of Non~urreat Physical and Intuglble Assets 

Land. buildinp, infrastructure and heritage and cultural assets are measured at fair value in accoolancc with AASB 116 
Property, Plant and Equi.pment, AASB 13 Fair Yalue Meanuement. and Queensland Trcasmy's Non-Current bset 
Accounting Policies for tM Quee,ult111d Public Sector. 

Plant and equipment. other than major plant and equipment, are measured at a.t. The carrying amounts for plant and 
equipment at cost should not materially differ from their fair value. 

NIJD-CUil'ellt physical assets measun:d at wr value arc comprehensively revalued at leasl once every three years with interim 
valuations, usmg appropriate indices, being otherwise performed on an annual basis whGrc there bas been material movement in 
the indices ftom year to year. 

Non-current physical assets were revalued by Aon Risk Solutions in 2015. 

The va1uatian procea pc:rfunned by Am Risk Solutions for land included physical inspections and reference to man.et 
transactioos for local sales of land with similar characteristics.. 

The comprehensive valuation procca performed by Aon Risk Solutions for buildings included physical inspections and the 
identification of the cuncnt condition of the asset and its expected remaining useful life. 

The valuatioo of residential buildings was based on publicly available data on sales of sim11ar properties in the region. 

Other buildings were valued on the basis of depreciated rq,laccmeot costs. This was dctc:rmined using a bill of quantities with 
costing refen::nce to published iodicies. The economic life of buildings have been adopt.ed with "Rfcrence to published 
Commissioner for Tuatian recommended economic lives, and .industry standards. 

Any revaluation ioacmcnt arising on the revaluation of an asset is reassigned in other compcd:iensivc income and aa:nmnlated 
in the asset revaluation smplus of the appropriate asset, cxcc:pt to the cxtart it reverses a revaluation decremm fi>r the asset 
previously recogoised as an expense. A decrease in the canying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense. to the extent it 
exceeds the balance. if any, in the revaluation swplus relating to that asset. 

7 



BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Notes to 8lld forming part of the fia.andal statementl 
for the PERIOD .ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

Noa 1 Swomary of Significaat Accowning Policies (cont) 

(D Revaluations of Non-Current Phyucal 8lld Intangible Aneta (cont) 

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is eliminated against ~ gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount 
restated to the revalued amount of the asset. 

Only those assets, the total values of which arc material compared to the value of the class of assets to which they belong. are 
c:ompn:hcnsively ICValued. 

Land is not dcprc:ciated as it has an unlimited useful life. 

Property, plant and equipment is deprecia1l:d on a straight-line basis so as to allocate the net cmt ar revalued amount of each 
asset, less i1s estimated miidual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the School. 

Assets under coostruction (wcxk-in-progrcss) arc not depreciated until they reach service delivay capacity. 

Where assets have separately identifiable compoocnts that are subject to regular replacement, tbcsc: compooc:nts are assigned 
useful lives dimnct from the asset to which they relate and arc dcpm:iated accordingly. 

(k) Amonbation ud Depreciation Property, Plot and Equipmellt 

Any expcnditore that increases 1he originally assessed capacity oc service potential of an asset is apitaliaed and the new 
depreciable amount is dqm:ciatcd over the rcamaining useful life of the aasd to the School. 

For each class of depreciable asset the following depreciation and amortisation rates are used; 

Buildings and Land Improvements 
~ 
Heritage assets 
Plant & Equipment 

Motor V chicles 
Computer Equipment 
Fumiture 
Otha 

(I) Impairmellt of No..c.rreot Al&etl 

I to7 
2.5 

1 to3 

IO to 15 
20to25 

10 
lto20 

All oon-cum:nt physical and intangJ.ole assets me assessed for indicators of impairment on an annual basis. If an indicator of 
po.m"blc impainnent exists, the School determines the as.,ct's recowzable amount. Any amouot by which 1hc asset's carrying 
amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impainncnt loss. 

The asset's recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the asset's fair value: less costs to sell and depreciated n:placemcnt 
cost. 

An impairment loss is w:ogoiscd immediately in the Statement of Comprehcosive .Income, unless the asset is carried at a 
revalued amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amomrt, the impainnent loss is offset against.the asset n:valuation 
n:scrve of the Jdevant assctlclaas to the extent available. 

WbCR an impairment loes subsequently rcvcrscs, the carrying amount of the asset is irunasecl to the wvised estimate of its 
recoverable amol.Dlt, but so that the inaeased canying amount docs not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined bad no impairment loss been rccogoiscd f(l(" the aSld in prior years. A reversal of an impainnent 1cm is recognised 
as income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a 
revaluation increase. Refer also note l(i). 

(•)Leases 

A distinction is made in the financial statements between finance leases that effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee 
substantially all risks and benefits incidental to OMHrShip, and operating leases, under wbidl the lessor retains substantially all 
risks and benefits. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTUS OF THE ROCK.HAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Notes to and formblg part of die flllallcw ltateme•tl 
for the PERIOD ENDFJ> 31 DECEMBER2017 

Note 1 S11111111fl)' of Sipffleant Aeeouatia: Polldes (coat) 

(m) Lcalel {cont) 

Oper:ating lease payments are repm;entativc of tbc pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets and arc expcmed in the 
periods in which they are incurred. 

{n) Payables 

Trade creditors arc recognised upon :receipt of the goods or services ordered and the invoice. and arc measured at the agreed 
purchasc:/contmct price. gnm of applicable trade and other disc:ounts. Amounts owing arc unsecured and arc generally settled 
m 30 day teams or sooner. 

(o) Financial lmtnunentll 

Recognition 

Fmancial assets and tiDBDcial liabilities arc recognised in the Statement of Fmancial Position when the School beoornc:s party to 
the c:ontractua) provisions of the financial instrument. 

Classification 

Fmancial instruments arc claaified and measured as follows: 

- Cash and Cash cquivalCDtB - held at fair value through profit and ]ms 
Ra:ei.vables - held at amortised cost 
Payables - held at amortised cost 

- Bcmnvings - held at amortised cost 

Borrowinp an: initially rccogniscd at fair w1ue, plos any transaction C<JSts directly attributable to the barrowinp. then 
subsequeody hdd at ammised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that cxact:ly 
discounls estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of a financial instrument (or. where appnipriate, a 
shorter period) to the net canying amoont of that instrumeot. 

Any borrowing cOlllS arc added to the canying amount of the borrowing to the extent they are not settled in the period in which 
they arise. Borrowings arc cJassified as non-cwreot liabilities to the extc:ut that the School bas an UDCODditional right to defer 
settlement until at least 12 months after balance date. 

The School docs not enter into transacti.ODB foc speculative purposes, nor for hedging. Apart from cash and cash equivale:ms, the 
School holds no financial assets c1assificd at fair value through profit and loss. 

(p) Employee Beaefia 

Waga, Salaries, Recreation Leave, Sick Leave. and Long Service Leave 

Wages and salaries due but unpaid at rcpcrting date are rccogniscd in the Statement of Financial Position at the oominal salary 
mtes. Workas' eompeosation insurance is a consequcncc of employing employees. but is not included in an employee's total 
remuncratioo package. It is not an employee bmclit and is recognised separately as employee related expenses. Employer 
superannuation <:0ntributions. recn:ation leave,. and loog service leave~ regarded as employee benefits. 

For unpaid entitlements expected to be paid within 12 months, the liabilities DC recognised at their undiscounted values, and are 
oo the basis that the School does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement beycod 12 months. Entitlements not due to 
be paid within 12 months are classified as non-cum:nt liabilities and m:ogniscd at their present value. calculated using yields on 
F"JXed Rate Commonwealth Govc:mment bonds of similar maturity. after projecting the :remuneration rates expeded to apply at 
the time oflikdy settlement. 

Prior history indicates that on average, sick leave taken each reporting period is less than the entitlement accrued. 'Ibis is 
expected. to cominue in future periods. Acconlingly. it is unlikely that existing accumulated entitlements will be used by 
employees and no liability for unused sick leave c:otitlcm.ents is recognised. 

As sick leave is nan-vesting. an expense is recognised for this leave as it is taken. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAM.MAR SCHOOL 

Not.ea to and forming part of the finudal statements 
for die PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2017 

Nate 1 s.m.ary of Slgoificallt AceolUdlllg Polides (coat) 

(p) Employee Benefm (cont) 

Employa- superannuation contributions are paid to the employees' choice of Queensland Independent Education and Caze 
Superannuation Trust (QIBC), The Rockhamptan Grammar School Staff'Superamwalion Plan (AMP CustomSupcr), BT 
I..ifdime Super- Employer Plan. and QSupcr. Cmtributioos arc expensed in the period in which they arc paid or payable. The 
School's obligation is limited to its cootn"butions to these funds. Thcrchc. no liability is recognised foc accruing 
superannuation bc:ncfits in these financial statcmcnts. 

(q) Flnaaeillg/llom C4ISts 

Fmance costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are inc:mrcd. 

finance costs include interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and 1oDg-tenn boaowings. 

(r) IDIU11111ce 

The School's non-cumm physical assets and olhc:r risks are insured through W"illis Australia I ;mitcd. premiums being paid on a 
risk assessment basis. In addition. the School pays premimns to WodtCover Qucms)and in n:spcct of its obligati(ms for 
employee compensation. 

(1) Executive R.emnentiom 

Key management peISQDDel and remuneration disclosures are made in accordance with Part S of the Ymancial Reporting 
Requirements for Queensland Government Agencies ~ by Quecns1and Treasury and Trade. Refer to Note 13 for the 
diacloslm:s on key cxccuti~ managemcot personnel and IaDIIDCnltion. 

(t)Tuation 

The School is a state body as defined under the Income Tax Astcssooot Act 1963 and is exempt fum Commonwealth taxation 
except f« Fringe Benefit Tax (FB11 and Goods and Sav.ices Tax (GS1). FBT and GST arc the only taxes accounted for by the 
school. AB such, input tax credits receivable and GST payables from/to the Australian Taxation Office are recognised and 
accrued as part of n:ccivables or payables in the Statement of financial Position. Revenues, cxpc:nsc:s and assets are n:cogaised 
net of the amount of GST except 

• Where the OST incuaed on a purchase of goods and 9Cl'Yices is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the 
OST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the ~ item as applicable; and 
• hc:eivables and payables are slated with the amount of OST incJnded. 

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash flows oo a gross basis and the OST COillpCXll:Dt of the cash flow arising from 
investing and :financing activities, which is cecovcrable :from, or payable to, the taxation authority, are classified as operating 
cash flows. 

(a} hauaaee of FiuBclal Statements 

The financial stateJ:JlC'nfS BR authoosed for issue by the Chairman of the Board ofTrustr.es of The R~ Grammar 
Sdtool at the daIC of signing the Management Cc:rtificate. The Baani has the powc:r to amend and re-issue the financial 
statements 

(v) Jadgemem ad Eltimm:I 

Provision fer Doubiful Debtora 
In calculating the school's provision for doubtful debts, the school asSC&SeS each debtor balance on a case by case basis. Nan
c:urrmt debtors ate included when a payment has not bcco. teeeived fir a significant period and no paymcot arrangement has 
been secured. These are placed into the hands of a collection agency. Current debtors are assessed and included in part m in 
full based mi a risk: assessment of the collectability of the debt. 

(w)Rowwti02 

Amounts included in the financial statements arc in Australian dollars and ha- been rounded to the nearest dollar. 
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BOARD OF TRUSffES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR.SCHOOL 

Notes to and fol'Dlhl& part of the flUDCial stmmea1B 
for dae PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2817 

NGR 1 Suunary ofSipffleant Accounting Policies (coat) 

(x) New and Rewsed Aecolllltiag Standards 

The Sdlool did not voluntarily change any of its acmuoting policies during 2017. The School has adopted all of the new and 
mvised standards and interpretatiaos is.wed. by the .Australian Accounting Standards Board (the AASB) that are relevant to the 
School and effective for the cum:nt reporting period. The adoption of these amendmt:ots has not resulted in any changes to the 
School's accounting policies and have oot affcc:ted the amounts IqJOrted for the cunent m priQI' period 

The School is not permitted to early adopt a new or amended accounting standard ahead of the specified commencemmt date 
unless approval is obtained from the Treasury Department. Consequently, the School has not applied any Australian accamti:ng 
slaDdards and intapretatioos that have been issued but are not yet effective. The School applies standanls and interprc:tatioo in 
accordanc:e with their mmcctivc commencement dates. 

AASB 124 - Related Party Discloslll"e8 
All close &mily membccs ofkey management pcrSQDIIC} were employed through an arm's leogth ~ They are paid in 
acoordanccwith the Award forthcjob they perform. The School employs 311 staff of which only 8 arc close &mily members of 
key management personnel. The School also discloses information about the remuncraticn expenses :fur key management 
pa:soonel in compliance with requirements from Quccosland Treasury. 

At the date of authorisation of the :financial report, the expected impacts of new or amended Australian Arx;nnnting Standards 
issued but with futw:c commencement dates are set out below: 

A.4SB 15 Revenue from Contract.r will, Customers 
This Standard will become effective from reportmg periods begilming on or after 1 January 2018 and contains much more 
detailed requirements far the accounting for certain types of revenue from customers. Depending on the specific coo.tractual 
temJs. the new requircmc:lds may potentially n:sult in a change to the timing of revenue ftom sales of the school's goods and 
scmr.es, such that some revenue may need to be defem:d to a later ICpOJting period to the extent that the school has received 
cash but bas not met its associated obligations (such amounts would be repmcd as a liability (uncamed revenue) in the 
meantime). The school is yet to complete its analysis of cunent arrangements fOI' sale of its goods and services. but at this stage 
does not c:xucct a sismificant imDact oo its ureaent accouotin2 mactices. 

MSB 9 Financial Instruments and AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian A.ccollllting Srandards arising.from 
AASB 9 {December 2014) 
These Standards will become cffecti~ fiom n:polting periods beginning on or after 1 JanWII}' 2018. Toe main impaas of these 
standards oo the School are that they will change the requin:mc:ots for the classification;mcasurcmmt, impairment and 
disclosma associated with the school's fiDancial assets. AASB 9 will introduce diffi:R:ot criteria for whclha: financial assets 
can be :measun:d at amortised cost or fair value. 

The School bas commenced reviewing the measurement of its financial assets against the new AASB 9 classification and 
measurement RqUiremcnts. However, as the classification of financial assets at the date of initial application of AASB. 9 will 
depend oo the facts and circumstances existing at that date, the school's cooclusions will not be coofirmed until closc:r to that 
time. At this slage. and aS111mring no change in the types oftnmsadious the School c:ntc:n into, all oftbc school's financial assets 
are expected to be required to be measured at amortised cost, which is consistcnt with how they arc cwtently valued. HoweVG', 
if any assets arc rcquiml to be Vcllucd at fair value, changes in the fair wJue of those assets will be mflcctcd in the school's 
cperating;iault. 

Another impact of AASB 9 rc:1ab:s to calculating impairm.cnt loaes fur 1he school's receivables. ~•ming no Sllbstantial change 
in the nature of the school's n:ceivablcs, as they don't include a significaut financing component, impairment losses will be 
determined according to the amount of lifetime expected crcdit losses.. On initial adoption of AASB 9, the school will need to 
dctmninc thc e:xpcctcd acdit losses for its receivables by comparing the credit risk at that time to the credit Ii* that existed 
when those receivables were initially recognised. 

The School will not need to restate comparative figures for financial instruments on adopting AASB 9 as from 2018. Howeva:, 
changed discl<mne requirements will apply from that time. A number of one-off disclosures may be rcquin:d in the: 2018-19 
financial statemmts to explain the impact of adopting AASB 9. Assuming no change in the types of financial instrmm:nts that 
the School enters into,. the most likely ongoing disclosure impacts '" expected to rdatc to the credit risk of financial assets 
subject to impainneot. All otha' Australian aa:ounting standards and intapR:tatioos with future commma;mcnt dates arc citha 
not BPJ>licable to the School's activities. or have no material imDact on the school. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEF.S OF THE ROC.KHAMPl'ON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Notes to aacl f~ part oftu ftuNhl atmmena 
for tlte PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2817 

Note 1 Summary of Sq:aifieut Aceountin& PoUda (cont) 

(x) New ud Re'Viled Ac:COIUltillg Studards (CN.t) 

AA.SB 16 Leasu 
This Standard will become effcdivc for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. When applied. the standard 
supcracdes AASB 117 Leases, AASB lntaprelalion 4 Determining whetha' an .Arrangem.eut antains a Lease, AASB 
Jnt.e:rpretation 115 Operating Leases - Incentives and AASB Interpretation 127 Evaluating the Substanec ofTransacticms 
Involving the I..cga] Fonn of a Lease. 

Impact for Lessees 
Unlike AABS 117 Lc:ascs, AASB 16 introduces a single lease accounting model fer lessees. Lessees will be i:equiml to 
recognise a right-of-use asset (RlJ[eSeJlti:ng rigbls to use the undaiying leased asset) and a liahility (iq,n:sc:nting the obligatim 
to make lease payments) for all leases with a tenn of more than 12 months, unless the underlying usets are of low value. In 
effect, the majcrity of operating leases (as defined. by the c:urrcot AASB 117) will be reported on the statement of financial 
position under AASB 16. There will be a significant inaease in assets and liabilities for c:ntities that lease: assets. The impact oo 
lhc reocxted assets and liabilities would be bu:v.elv in »rooortion to the scale of the entitv's leasimz activities. 

The rigbt~f-use asset will be initially n:cognised at cost, consisting of the initial amount of the associated lease liability, plus 
any lease payments made to the lessor at er before the c:ommenccmcot date, less any lease incentive received, the initial estimate 
of n:suntioo costs and any initial dinx:t costs incurred by the lessee. The right-of-use asset will give rise to a dqin:ciatiao 
expeosc. 

The lease liability will be initially ia:ognised at an amount equal to the presmt value of the 1ease paymcots during the lease term 
that are not yet paid. Cwrent operating lease rental payments will no longer be expensed in the Statement of Comprcbcosive 
Income. They will be appmtianed between a reduction in the m:ognised lease liability and the implicit finance charge (the 
effi:aivc Iate of interest) in the lease. The finance cmt will also be :recognised as an expense. AASB 16 allows a •cumuJati\'e 
approach' rather than full retrospective application to recognising existing operating lc:ascs.. If a lessee chooses to apply the 
'cumulative approach', it does not need to restate comparative information. Instead, the cnrnnlativccffect of applying the 
slaDdard is rccogniaed as an adjustmmt to the opening balance of accumulated suq,Jus (or other coq,oncnt of equity, as 
appropriate) at the date of initial application. The School will await further guidaocefrom Qucensbmd Treasury on the 
transitiooal accounting method to be applied. The Sc:bool has not yet quantified the impact oo. the Statcrom1 ofC,omprchmsi.ve 
lnc<mc or the Statcmmt of F"maru:ial Position of applying AASB 16 to its cmrent operating lc:ases, including the extalt of 
additional disclOllllle requirm 

All other Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations with ~ COIDlllCnCelllC dates an, either not applicable to the 
School's activities, <r have no matcria'I impact on the school. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Notes to and fonai11g part of the fiP•PCiaJ ltatemeats 
for the PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER.2017 

Note 1 Suumry ef Sipifieut AeealltiPg Policies (cont) 

(x) New 8Dd Revised Aecolllltia& Stu.duda (eont) 

MSB 1058: Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (applicable to BDDual ~ periods beginning en or after 1 January 2019). 

This Standard is applicable to transactions that do not arise fuun enfon:cablc contracts with cUSlOIDl"ZS involving performance 
obligations. 

The significant accounting requirements of AASB 1058 are as follows: 
- Jnoome arising from an excess of the initial careying amount of an asset over the related contributions by OWIICl'S, inaeascs in 
liabilities, deaeases in assets and~ should be immediately IeCC>gJliscd in profit « loss. For this purpose. the assets, 
liabilities and n:venue an: to be measured in aecordance with other applicable Standards. 
- Liabilities should be recognised for the excess of the initial carrying amount of a financial assets (.n:ceived in a transfer to 
enable the catity to acquire or construct a recognisable noo-6oancial asset that is to be CODlrollcd by the entity) over any mated 
amoonts recopiscd in acairdance with the applicable Standards. The liabilities must be amortised to profit or Joa as income 
when the entity satisfies its obligations under the traosfc:c. 

An entity may elect to recognise vohmtccr services or a class of volunteer services as an a,-r.n,mting policy choice if the fair 
value oftboae assets can be measured :reliably, whether or not the services would have been pun:based if they had not been 
donated. Recognised volunteer services should be measured at fil.ir value and any exce.u over the related amounts (such as 
contributions by owners er revenue) immediately rc:cognised as income in profit or las& 

The tran.ffliooal provisions of this Standard permit an entity to either: restate the contracts that existed in each prim- period 
prcacotcd in accordance with AASB I 08 (subject to certain practical cx:pcdients); or recognise the cumulative effect of 
.n:ttospectivc applicatioo to incamplc:te cootracts on the date of initial application. For this purpose, a completed contract is a 
contract or transadiao for which the entity has rccogniscd all of the income in accordance with AASB 1004 Contn'butions. 

The school does not anticipate that the adoption. of AASB 1058 will have a material impact on. its fiuaocial statcmmas. It is 
impractical at this staF to provide a IC8SOD8ble estimate of such impact. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Notes to ud formfag part of tbe fhuuacial mtemeats 
for the PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

Notl! 2 Operating Raalt 

Operating Result before income tax includes the following items: 

(a) Reveaue 

Fee IIICOIIIC 

Tuition 
Boarding 
Other 
Total Fee Income 

State Gove.rmnent Gnm 

Commoawealtla Government Grants 

R.c:cwre:nt grant 
Capital grants 
Other 

Total Gnat lllCOllle 

Other hlcome 

Interest 
Other Tuition Income 
Early Leaming~ 
Dance & Musical Theatre Academy 
Red & Blade Shop Income 
Donations 
MiseelJancous 

VETGranl 

Total Otlter Income 

Total Revenue from Onliury Activities 

14 

2017 
s 

11,664,886 
S,742,139 
1,020,675 

18,427,700 

2,835,029 
18,SOO 

238,325 
3,091,854 

11,081,255 

31 ,357 
11,112,612 

14,204,466 

102,549 
1,313,336 
3,617,479 

277,448 
77,868 

154,182 
435,563 

5,978,425 

11451 
11,451 

5,989,876 

38.622.042 

2016 
s 

11,879,383 
6,008,900 
1,014,132 

18,902,415 

2,m.;339 
27,493 

235.623 
3,040,455 

10,641,000 

10,000 
10,651,000 

13,691 ,455 

122,065 
1,442,784 
2,744,926 

269,176 

. 137.140 
865,156 

5,581,246 

22,286 
22,286 

5,603,533 



BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAM.PTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Notes to aad forming part of tile fiaMPc:lal stateme8ts 
for tile PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

Note 2 Ope~ Rel.it (coat) 

(b)hpc:mes 

Salaries & Wages 
Supcrannuatim 
Employee Entitlements Provided 
FriIJF Benefits Tax 

Insurance - Worker's Compcmation 

Total Employee .Espeua 

The number of cmpl~ including both full-time employees and part
time employees measured on a full-time equivalent basis is: 

Board Membas receive no remuneration. 

Sappllel and Serviee11 

Tuitim Supplies and Services 
Boardiog Supplies and Services 
Property Supplies and Servia:s 
Early Leaming Centre 
Dance & Musical 1hc:atre Academy 
Rc:d & Black Shop Expenses 
Adminislration Supplies and Services 

Buildings 
PJant, Equipment and Mou Vehicles 

Toal E:q,emes from Ordinary Activities 

Queensland Audit Office - Extemal Audit Services 

The auditors did not receive any remuneration for 11flD.-audit services. 

(cl) lmpmmeot Loaes 

No impairmmtlossc:s were m:ogniaed during 2017. 

15 

2017 
s 

21,348.,209 
2,318,236 

615,205 
108,104 

24,389,754 

153,228 

24,542,982 

258.S 

1,600,806 
1,105,529 
2,863,987 

322,180 
103,421 

81.,214 
2,966,461 

9,043,598 

1,119,524 
1,363,652 
2,483,176 

978,485 

37,04§,241 

32,400 

2016 
$ 

21,101,609 
2,303,380 

470,086 
228,047 

24,103,122 

126,189 

24,229,311 

274.S 

l,735,alS 
1,352,692 
2,683,642 

287,Pm 
93,873 

0 
3,062.,312 

9,221,221 

1,070,557 
1,160,688 
2,231,245 

1,041,374 

36,723.150 

31.SOO 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKIIAMPTON GRAMMAR.SCHOOL 

Nota to and fonnin& part of tile fbumew statemem 
for dte PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

C• and Cala l'..qaivalffts 
2017 2016 

$ $ 
Genenlhnd 

Cash at Bank and Deposits at Call 3,205.820 1,475,759 
Petty Cash and Floats 7,940 2 880 

3,213,760 1,478.639 

BllildlJll Fund 

Cash at Bank and Deposits at Call 190,757 186.749 

Bunuy & Beqaest Fallds 

Cash at Bank and .Depo&ts at Call 124,001 123,190 

Edacation Fniul 

Cash at Bank and Deposits at Call 420,102 406,567 

Total C..h and Cam Eqmftleats 3,948,620 2,195,145 

Cash deposited with Queensland Treasmy Corp(ntion earned intr.t'CSt between 2.30% to 2.65% in 2017 (2.45% to 3.23% in 
2016). lntcn:st earned an cash held with the Westpac Banking Corponition camed between 0.10'% to 2.69% in 2017 (0.10% to 
2.93% in 2016). 

ThcR are no R:Slrictioos over the use of cash. ex.cept for the Building Fund and Education Fund, which are endorsed by the ATO 
as Deductible Gift .Recipient funds.. The use of cash held in both of 1hese fimds is restricted, subject to the n=quiremeoas of a 
DOR (as specified by the ATO). 

As per A TO guidelines, a school building fund is solely for providing mcney to acquire, c:oostrud or maintain 9Chool or eollc:gc 
buildinp. It cannot be used fur any atha" purpose. Expenditure an capital improVClllCIIIS and mainteoaJx;e. as well as iDstalling 
and maintaining fixtmes, are accc:pted outlays of a school building fund. 

Note 4 Itecelnbla 

General Fund 

Debtors - Fees 
Debtors- Otha 

GST Receivable 
Total Reeeiffbla 

Note S OClier Current Asaet.s 

Prepayments 
Accrued lntm:st lncomc 
Accrued Income 
Tobi Otller Cureat Allca 

Note 6 Property, Plaat and Equipment 

725,728 
2,380 

90,367 
818,475 

431,611 
8,802 

440,413 

487,608 
42,962 

80,645 
611,215 

564,989 

564,989 

lndcpendeot valuations of land, buildine,,. inftaslructure. heritage and cultural assets, plant and equipment were performed as at 
31 Dccembc:r 2015 by Aon Risk Solutions using "fair wluc" principles in accordarulc with AASB13. At that date, the wluation 
of land and buildinp was based an depreciated current replacemmt cmt and marlret values on the basis of diru:t comparison of 
similar assets. For infrasuuctm'e, and heritage and cu1tuntl assets, the bases of valuation were depreciated current rq,roductim 
c:cm and depreciated cumnt rcplacemaJt cost, respc:dively. Residclllial properties were valued oo the basis of direct 
eomparison appraisal wb.cn:by the property was oompared to the sale of other comparable UDits in the local area_ 2015 property 

valw:s arc shown on a moss basis in accordance with the reauircmcnts of Oueens1and Tn:asurv and Trade NCAP S. 

No assets are offered as sc:curity for borrowings. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Neta to and formillg part of tile fiaoclal sta1Emelds 
for dae PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

N• 6 Property, Plant ud Eqllipment (cont) 

lnfi:a5tructuie assets are defined as xcasoo.able site prcparaticn earthW<Xks, underground services such as trunk stmm.water and 
sewer drainage, water supply, fire ring main and electrical mains and sub-mains, roadwcdts and pamng areas and associated 
drainage. access lighting. pathways and paving. sports oval, general landacaping. fencing. isolated shade structures and covaed 
lmkB. play areas a.ijacent to primaJy teaching blocks. Motor vehicles, plant and equipmcor, and fumimre and fittinp are valued 
at cost 

2017 2016 
$ $ 

L.ild 
At cost 486,646 486,646 
At independent w.luation 15,022.500 15,022,500 

15,509,146 15,509,146 

BlliltlJ,,p 
Atalllt 3,556.4&7 3,062,811 
At independent valuation 74,668,245 74,668,245 
Less accumulated depreciation (25,568,736) {24,632.570) 

S2,6SS,996 53,098,486 

Hm111g~ IISsdS 
At indcpcnde:ot valuation 9,335,000 9,335,000 
Lea accumulated depreciation (6,026,520) (5,992.760} 

3,308,480 3,342,240 

Buililil,gs U,u/o Canstnu:tion 
Atalllt 22 197 80,877 

22,197 80,877 

I~ 
At independent valuation 5,534,000 5,534,000 
Less accumulated depreciation (2.035.591) (1,885.992) 

3,498,409 3,648,008 

Total Lamd & BIIDdillp 74,994,228 75,678,757 

Plat& &J,dpmt!fft 
At cost 6,189,660 5,344,585 
Less accumulated depreciation (3,262.343) (2,290.340) 

2,927,317 3,054,245 

F"""'1tn cl Flllinp 
At cost 393,413 388,133 
Less aa::urnuJatr:d depreciation (98,113} (61 .022) 

295,300 327,111 

Mt11« Ydddlts 
At cost 920,993 920,993 
Less acammlated. dcprcciation (486.716) (392,022) 

4'34;1.77 528,971 

Total Plant & l'.qulpmeat 3,656,894 3,91().327 

Tetal Property, Plaut & Equipment 78,651,122 79,589,084 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKBAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Note1 to and forming part of the financlal 1t.atement. 
for the PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

Note 6 Property, Plut and Equlpmeat (cont) Recondllation 

Land Buildlnp Heritage Assets Bulldinp Under Jnftastructurc Plant and FumituR and Motor Vehicles Total 
Construction Bquipmnt Fittings 

$ s s s $ $ $ $ s 

Cmying amount st I January 2017 15,509,146 53,098,486 3,342,240 80,877 3,648,008 3,054,245 327,111 528,971 79,589,084 

Acquisilions 440,037 6,032 1,124,689 5,280 1,576,038 

Disposals (30,824) (30,824) 

Transfers between classes 53,638 (64,712) 11,074 

Oain/Loss on Revaluation of Prop,Plant&F.quip 

Depreciation (936,165) (33,760) (149,599) (1,231,867) (37,091) (94,694) (2,483, l 76) 

Cmying amount at 31 December 2017 IS,~09,14§__ _ S2,6SS,996 _ _ 3,308,480 _ 22,197 . 3,498,409 2,927,317 _.]95,300_ 434,277 78,651,122 

Land Buildings Heritage Assets Buildings Under lnfi'astn1cturc Plant and Furniture and Motor Vehicles Total 
Construction Equipment Fittings 

s $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Cenying amount at l January 2016 15,022,500 Sl,182,340 3,376,000 471,867 3,788,000 2,428,483 261,834 541,706 77,072,730 

Acquisitions 486.646 316,397 2,142,831 1,695,629 77,006 77,000 4,795,509 

Disposals (47,910) (47,910) 

Transfers between classes 2,496,554 (2,533,821) 16,290 20,977 

Gain/Loss on Revaluation of Prop,Plant&Equip 

Depreciation (896,805) (33,760) (139,992) (1,038,247) (32,706) (89,735) (2,231,245) 

Carryiq amount at 31 December 2016 15,509,146 53,098,486 3,342,240 80,877 _ 3,648,008 ___ 3,0S4,24S 
-

327,li_l 528,971 79!S89,084 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEF.S OF THE R.OCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Notes to and fonnlng put of tlae financial stamaeata 
for the PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

Note 7 Payllhlel 

Note9 

Crediton 

Creditors 
Acaued Cmlitors 
Tami Payables 

Fees in Advance 
Accrued Income 
Total Fees in Advuce 

Current 
Qld To:asury Corporation Bmrowings 

NOl>-Olrrent 
Qld Treasury Corporation BIXllJWing, 

2017 
s 

1,458.824 
298,138 

1,756,962 

766,970 
4425 

771,395 

1,997,081 
1,997,081 

12,427,775 
12,427,775 

2016 
$ 

1,089,387 
188,482 

1,277,869 

663,279 
3,295 

666.574 

2,063,435 
2,063,435 

13,446,372 
13,446,372 

All borrowings me in SA denomirmted amounts and carried at amortised cost, interest being expensed as it accrues. No interest 
has been capitalised during the CWTCDt er ccmparative repm1ing period. Expeca:d final repaymart dates wry from 15 March 
2017 to 15 Dcccmbcr 2032 Thc:.n: have been no defaults er breaches of the loan agrcc:ment during the. period. 

Principal and inteiest ICpaymcnts arc made quanmy in mears at rates ranging ftom 5.23% to 8.71 % fur Qw:cosland TR:8SUIY 
Coq,cration borrow~. 

The fair value of the School's tx.rowings (QTC) at 31 Dcamber 2017, as notified by the QuN:osland TR&SDI)' Cmporatioo. was 
$16,984,171 (2016 $18,343,035). The fair wluc is calcu1ated using discountcd cash flow anal)'Sis and 1bc dfcctivc interest rate. 

As it is the intention of the School to hold its borrowings fur their full tenn. no fair value adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount ofthcbm'owings. 

All borrowings of the Board are guaranteed by the Govanment of Queensland. 

Accnt.ed Employee Beaef"ats 
2017 2016 

Qirrent 

Employee entitlements 
- Wage.s payable 489,159 556.144 
- Aonua1 leave 448,614 346,071 
- Long service leave 2,551 ,721 2,312,456 
Total Accrued Employee Bellefitl 3,489,494 3,214,671 

Non-currenz 
- Long service leave 378,871 509,017 
To1Bl Accrued Employee Benefits 378,871 509,017 

The amait provision fer lcog service leave is based on the cotitlc:mcnt of all cmpl())US with at least 7 years of saw:e. entitled 
to take lcmg service leave within the next 12 months. The amount ofleave cxpec:ted to be taken by staff, or paid within the next 
12 months is $453,852 (2016 $446,460). 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Note 10 AlntRenluadon Surplaa by Clut 

Balallce I January 2017 
Revaluation lllcmnental(Decmnents) 
Impairment Los,ea Through Equity 
Balallce 31 December 2017 

Baluce 1 Jannary 2016 
bvaluation Increment&l(Docmnents) 
Balance 31 December 2016 

Notes to and forming part of the Onanclal 1tatementl 
for the PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER2017 

Land Buildings& 
Improvements 

Heritage Aasell Pllnt & Equipment, Infrastructure 
Fumlture 

$ s $ s s 

10,353,573 7,962,748 1,692,590 12,765 826,018 

Total 

$ 

20,847,693 

10,353,573 7,962,748 1,692,590 12,765 826,018 20,847,693 

Land 

$ 

Buildinga & 
Improvements 

s 

Heritaae AaetB Plant & Equipment, Jnftaa!nlchlre Total 
Furniture 

s $ $ $ 

10,353,573 7,962,748 1,692,590 37,051 826,018 20,871,979 
(24,286) -24,286 

10,353,573 7,962,748 1,692,590 12,765 826,018 20,847,693 

The asset revaluation aurplus tepre11e11ta the net effect of upwards and downwards fair value revaluations of aseets. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCK.HAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Notes to and fol"llliag put of tile fiuneial ltldements 
fOI' tile P.ERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2817 

(a) Cash at the end of the yeu, • shown in the Statement of C...b Flows 
Cashmhand 
Cash at bank 
Deposits at call 
Term deposits 

2017 
$ 

7,940 
695,180 

3,.245,500 

3,948,620 

(b) RecoadUatloll of aet call from opentillg aetMdea m aet result for tile period 
Net result for the period 1,573,801 
Depn:ciatim 2,483,176 
Badck:bts (6,513) 
Disposal of non-current assets 25,855 
Revaluation decrement 
Oiangc in operating assets and liabilities 

Decn:ase (metaiSC) in receivables 
Decrease (inacasc) in inventory 
Deaease (mcrcasc} in GST input tax ac:dits recervable 
Decrease (increase) in prepayments 
lncn:ase (dea'easc} in payables 
Incn:ase (dea'easc} in other liabilities 

Increase (decrease) in accrued employee mtitlc:mcnts 
Net cash from opc:ratiog activities 

~ arc no nan-cash financing or investing activities. 

Nete ll Commitmeau for Expenclitnn 

(a} Non-eaacellable Openitmg Lcasca 

(191,024) 
(319,243) 

(9,722) 
124,577 
479,093 
104,821 

144,675 
4,4()1),496 

At 31 December the School had the following operating lease commitmmts inclusive ofGST: 

within one year 
one to five yeais 

111,747 
44,329 

156.07§ 

2016 
$ 

2,880 
1,485,846 

349,476 
356,943 

2,195.145 

1,474,252 
2,231,245 
(220,100} 

47,910 

181,155 

97,tno 
(185,788) 

274,513 
25,205 

(68,164) 
3,858,257 

172,422 
156,184 

328,606 

Operating leases iR cutm:d into as a means of acquiring access to office equipment and vehicles. Lease payments are fixed. 
Some leases have R:D.ewal or purchase options. 

(b) Capital Espendlblre Cnmmitmeats 

Capital expenditure c:ommitmmts contracted for at reporting date but not recogoiscd in the accounts amount to $72, 7S0 for air
conditioning of classrooms.. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR SCHOOL 

Notes to md fonaillg part of tile fimdal statements 
for tbe Pf.RIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

Note 13 Key Executive lwnaoendon 

Pmido .. 

The School has assessed the key executive maoagemcnt personnel positions in context of the School being constituted under the 
Grammar Schools Act 2016. Details of executive management persconcl positicms, n:spco.sibilities. appoiDtmcot date and 
remuneration are dc:tailed below. Further infOI1D11tion on these positioos can be found in the body of the Annual Report under 
the secti rela · G OD lmg to ovcmance. 

C..cnctdmuillcdaaud ....--mt » ... -,plllllted 1iD 
B...,...lillilitia llldbDrlly (Cllfflld ,_..,...) pllllb 

Elected position through roll of 
E/ect,ed Tn,,y,ees 

To supen,is. mamiD add c:onlrol 
da:toJS and appointed by the 20Mar2014 

Illa candm of Ille Scbaol To llllkc Governor in Counc:il 
rules willl rcgllda ro IIID-V- 20Mar20l4& 

Government Appointed Trvstee ad 1U11ro1 ofdlll SdlooL Appointed by the Governor in 
190ct2017 

Council 

nc lbdmuleris ~1c b'lbe 
iq,lc:mcorlnoo orp1aas ud lnmgies 
• ~ byllll Boud ol"l'illlllllaL 
This HoldlliP I .is R11p01DC blbe 

Hetzdmoster 
IIUCUlial _...,..,.... oflbe 

Contnwt 20Jan2010 plwsical. flmncialudia--
malllS of dlc ICllaol. a woll a tamg 
ldlplllllDily a 1ep1 ilwl. school 
polil;y dc'ldopumt. lllalllp; pJaamaa 
and lwo..s c:GIIIIIIIIIDly..... C 

TIie nq,.y ~ suppm1I Im 

Deputy Headmaster -Head of Middle School 
l:ladmuk.ria iq,)eomdatioa or Permaneint :Employee I Jan 1999 plam 111111lrllcpm a clalopk,d by ------Supponsllla ~in 

Head of Sealor Scl,ool iq,ICIIIClllalioa of pla,,s and lll8lmpl9 PemumentEmployee 1 Jan 1999 
a dclc:pltd by 1111, HewlmMRr 

~lbe~m 
Head of Primllry School iq,lem,:ntnon orp1mis • mtqiel Permanent Employee 1 Jan2003 

• deleplCd by Ille Re.-.ster 

Sapportalhe ~-
Heod of Early Leaming implrrnentaliM of pas Ullltratogioa .Pemmnent Employee 2Fc:b'JM1 

IIS dcleplDd by tbo HaclDlrer 

Supports the Hadmuler in 

Diredor of Boarding iqlJemolulioD of plaN add *811:gias Pamanezrt Employee 24May2016 
.. dalop1locl lly Im s---
A<*• .:,e,;n:laly ID lllC 8oan:l of 

Secretary ID tile Board <1.{Trustees 
T'lllslecs-.lmg!O Bolld buli-, 

Pcrmanait Employee 23May2016 
U n,q,iin,d IO IClllble Ibo Bcmd D 
cany oat ils ~.,arumn, functinns. 

The rcmunentim and other t.erms of employment for the key executive managcmc::nt personnel arc specified in employment 
cmtracts.. 

The Board ofTrustccs operates in a competitive environment both nationally and intematiaoally, and relies en informaticn from 
indus1Iy bcocbmarb from a range of industry sources, including the Ausaralian Heads oflndependc:nt Schools Association and 
Jndq,cndmt Schools Q,,eensJand, to set 1emuncr4tion packages to cosurc the School is able to attract the best candidates for its 
executive leadership team. 

Rcmuneiatial packages for key executive Dllllllgcment pcrsoonel compri.sc the following components: 
• Short term CIDl>loYee benefits which include: 

- Base - consisting of Base: salary, allowances and leave entitlements paid and provided for the eofuc year oc fer that part of 
the year during whic:h the employee occupied the specified position. Amounts disclosed equal the amount cxpcosed in the 
Statement of Ccmprehcnsive Income. 
- Non-lllOildary benefits - consisting of provision of remission far &hool fees, other non-lllOletaly benefits, togc:tber with 
the fringe bencfi1s tax applialble to the benefit. 

• Long term employee benefits include amounts expensed in respect of long service leave. 
• Post employment bc:ncfits include amounts expensc:d in respect of superannuation CCJ11tributioos. 
• Redundancy paymc::nts are not provided for within individual contracts of employment. Cantracts of employment provide only 
foc notice periods or payment in lieu of notice on termination. :reyJll'dless of the reason fur tcmrlnation. 
• No perfonnance bonuses wcrc paid. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR.SCHOOL 

Notes to and formillg put of the fiaoml sutelmlltl 
for the PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

Note 13 Key Excadive Remuaeratioll (coat) 

I January 2017 -31 December 2017 

Position Short Term Employee 
Benefits 

Non-Monetary 
Base Benefits 

$ s 
Elected Trustees - -
Government Appointed 
Trustees - -
Headmaster 342,887 86,922 
Deputy Headmaster-

136,115 20,263 
Head of Mlddle School • 
Head of Senior School 152,587 -
Head of Primarv School • 157,919 -
Head of Early Leaming 142,291 151 
Director of Boardi nR • 179993 -
Secretary to the Board of 

163,459 27,066 
Trustees• 

1 January 2016-31 Dc:cember 2016 

Position Short Term Employee Benefits 

Non-Monetary 
Base Benefits 

$ s 
Elected Trustees - -
Government Appointed 
Trustees - -
Headmaster 334,442 90,255 
Deputy Headmaster - ttead 
of Middle School 161,877 19,937 
Head of Senior School 147,290 -
Head of Primary School 146,944 -
Head of Early Leaming 127,690 4,918 
Director of Boarding (from 
24/05/16) 90,618 -
Secretary to the Board of 
Trustees (to 20/05/16} 96,461 5,676 
$ecretary to the Board of 
Trustees (from 23/05/16} 92,339 12,313 

Long Term Post Tennination 
Employee Employee Benefits 
Benefits Benefits 

$ $ $ 
- - -

- - -
9,518 42,968 -
3,824 16,697 -

4246 14154 -
4391 19,644 -
3832 13266 -
4 ,246 20,485 -
4,128 15,008 -

Long Term Post Termination 
Employee Employee Benefits 

Benefits Benefits 

$ $ s 
- - -

- - -
6,810 42,075 -
4,542 20,322 -
4,123 17,772 -
4,123 18,514 -
3,529 11,946 -
4,123 11,279 -

- 9,070 187,D47 

4,128 8,467 -

Total 
Remuneration 

s 
-

-
482,295 

176,&99 

170,987 

181.954 
159,540 
204n4 

209,661 

Total 
Remuneration 

s 
-

-
473,582 

206,678 
169,185 
169,581 
148,083 

106,020 

298,254 

117,247 

The remuneration figun,s disclosed above: for positions noted with * are inclusive of extraordinary events that occurml during 
2017. These events include the taking of long service leave at half pay. cashing out ofleave emitlemmts. and executive staff 
uudataking a position of added ICSpUISibility with appropriate additional J'CIDUllCflltio 

Note 14 Evelltl Occarrlar; After Balance Date 

Tbac arc no material eveots OCQDriog after ballUlCC ~-

The Board ofTrustccs bas the power to amend and m-issuc the financial statements. 

There are no known contingent liabilities at balaoce date. 
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BOARD OF TRUSI'EES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GRAMMAR.SCHOOL 

Ccrdfkale oftlae Board of Trutees of the Rockhamptoa Grammar Sdtool 

These general pwpo.,e financial statements have been prepared pw:suant to section 62(1) of the Financial Accountability A.ct 
2009 (the Act), relevant sections of the Financial and Perfonmuia: Management Standard 2009 and other pracribed 
requin:mcnts. In accordancc with Section 62{l){b) of the Act we certify that in our opmim: 

KJJOHNSON 
Board Scaetary 

:;g' d- ,IR'-

a) the pn:scribed reqlliremmts for establishing md keeping the accouot.s have been complied with in all material 
ra;pec:ts; and 

b) the statements have been drawn up to present a true and fair view, in accocdana: with pn:scribcd accounting 
standards, of the transacticmsofthe Board ofTrustccsofThe Rockbampton Grammar Scllool fer the year 1 Janwuy 
2017 to 31 Dec;ember 2017 and of the financiaJ position of the School at the end of that year. 

B!l!{ 
Chairman 

:Jf ,.21 ;'r 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of the Rockhampton Grammar School 

Report on the audit of the financial report 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of the Board of Trustees of the 
Rockhampton Grammar School. 

In my opinion, the financial report: 

a) gives a true and fair view of the entity's financial position as at 31 December 2017, and 
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended 

b) complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2009, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission 
Act 2012, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013 and 
Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements. 

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, 
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including summaries of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the certificate given by 
the Chairman and the Board Secretary. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Report section of my report. 

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of 
the Australian Charities and Not-for-profds Commission Act 2012 and with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code 
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the 
financial report in Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code and the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Responsibilities of the entity for the financial report 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and 
Performance Management Standard 2009, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profds 
Commission Act 2012, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 
2013 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements, and for 
such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the 
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 



The Board is also responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the entity or to otherwise cease 
operations. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
this financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the entity. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the entity's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I 
am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. I base my 
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that I identify during my audit. 



In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 31 December 
2017: 

a) I received all the information and explanations I required. 

b) In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping 
of accounts were complied with in all material respects. 

John Welsh 
as delegate of the Auditor-General 

28 February 2018 

Queensland Audit Office 
Brisbane 
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